
Cabinet
Agenda

Date:      Tuesday, 10 January 2017
Time:      4.00 pm
Venue:   City Hall, College Green, Bristol, BS1 5TR

Distribution:
Cabinet Members: Marvin Rees (Mayor), Cllrs Mark Bradshaw, Clare Campion-Smith, Craig Cheney, 
Fi Hance, Claire Hiscott, Helen Holland, Paul Smith, Estella Tincknell (Deputy Mayor) and Asher Craig

Copies to Senior Leadership Team

Members of the public attending meetings or taking part in Public Forum are advised that all Cabinet 
meetings are filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the council's webcasting pages. The whole of 
the meeting is filmed (except where there are confidential or exempt items) and the footage will be
available for two years. If you ask a question or make a representation, then you are likely to be 
filmed and will be deemed to have given your consent to this. If you do not wish to be filmed you 
need to make yourself known to the webcasting staff. However, the Openness of Local Government 
Bodies Regulations 2014 now means that persons attending meetings may take photographs, film 
and audio record the proceedings and report on the meeting (Oral commentary is not permitted 
during the meeting as it would be disruptive). Members of the public should therefore be aware that 
they may be filmed by others attending and that is not within the council’s control.

Issued by: Ruth Quantock, Democratic Services
City Hall, Po Box 3167, Bristol, BS3 9FS 
Tel: 0117 92 22828
E-mail: democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk
Date: Friday, 30 December 2016

Public Document Pack

mailto:democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk


Cabinet – Agenda

Agenda
PART A - Standard items of business:

1. Welcome and introductions 
SAFETY INFORMATION

Please note: if the alarm sounds, everyone at the meeting should please
exit the building via the way they came in, via the main entrance lobby
area, and then the front ramp. Please then assemble on the paved area
in front of the building on College Green by the flag poles.

If the front entrance cannot be used, alternative exits are available via
staircases 2 and 3 to the left and right of the Council Chamber.  These exit
to the rear of the building. The lifts are not to be used. Then please make
your way to the assembly point at the front of the building.

Please do not return to the building until instructed to do so by the fire
warden(s).

2. Public Forum 
Up to one hour is allowed for this item 

Any member of the public or Councillor may participate in Public Forum. 
Petitions, statements and questions received by the deadlines below will be 
taken at the start of the agenda item to which they relate to. 

Petitions and statements (must be about matters on the agenda):
• Members of the public and members of the council, provided they give notice 
in writing or by e-mail (and include their name, address, and ‘details of the 
wording of the petition, and, in the case of a statement, a copy of the 
submission) by no later than 12 noon on the working day before the meeting, 
may present a petition or submit a statement to the Cabinet.

• One statement per member of the public and one statement per member of 
council shall be admissible.

• A maximum of one minute shall be allowed to present each petition and 
statement.

• The deadline for receipt of petitions and statements for the 10 January 2017
 Cabinet is 12 noon on Monday 09 January 2017. These should be sent, in writing 
or by e-mail to: Democratic Services, City Hall, College Green,Bristol, BS1 5TR
e-mail: democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk

mailto:democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk


Cabinet – Agenda

Questions (must be about matters on the agenda):
• A question may be asked by a member of the public or a member of Council, 
provided they give notice in writing or by e-mail (and include their name and 
address) no later than 3 clear working days before the day of the meeting.

• Questions must identify the member of the Cabinet to whom they are put.

• A maximum of 2 written questions per person can be asked. At the meeting, a 
maximum of 2 supplementary questions may be asked. A supplementary 
question must arise directly out of the original question or reply.

• Replies to questions will be given verbally at the meeting. If a reply cannot be 
given at the meeting (including due to lack of time) or if written confirmation of 
the verbal reply is requested by the questioner, a written reply will be provided 
within 10 working days of the meeting.

• The deadline for receipt of questions for the 10 January Cabinet is 5.00 pm on 
Wednesday 04 January 2017. These should be sent, in writing or by e-mail to: 
Democratic Services, City Hall, College Green, Bristol BS1 5TR. 
Democratic Services e-mail: democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk 

When submitting a question or statement please indicate whether you are 
planning to attend the meeting to present your statement or receive a verbal 
reply to your question

3. Apologies for Absence 

4. Declarations of Interest 
To note any declarations of interest from the Mayor and Councillors.  They are 
asked to indicate the relevant agenda item, the nature of the interest and in 
particular whether it is a disclosable pecuniary interest. 

Any declarations of interest made at the meeting which is not on the register of 
interests should be notified to the Monitoring Officer for inclusion.

5. Matters referred to the Mayor for reconsideration by a scrutiny 
commission or by Full Council 

(subject to a maximum of three items)

None on this occasion.

mailto:democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk


Cabinet – Agenda

6. Reports from scrutiny commission 

None on this occasion 

7. Chair's Business 
To note any announcements from the Chair

PART B - Key Decisions

8. Collection Fund - Estimated Council Tax and Business Rates 
Surplus 2016/17 

To note the estimated surplus at 31 March 2017 on the Council Tax element and 
Non-Domestic Rates (NDR) element of the Collection Fund. 

(Pages 5 - 14)

9. Period 7 (end of October) Finance Report 
To provide a progress report on the Council’s overall financial performance
against revenue and capital budgets for the 2016-17 financial year that were
approved by Council on the 16th February 2016. 

(Pages 15 - 50)

PART C - Non-Key Decisions

None on this occasion. 



Executive Summary of Agenda Item No. 8
Report title: Collection Fund – Estimated Council Tax and Business Rates 
Surplus 2016/17
Wards affected: City Wide
Strategic Director: Anna Klonowski – Interim Strategic Director Resources

Report Author: Denise Murray - Service Director - Finance

Recommendation for the Mayor’s approval:

1. To note that an estimated surplus at 31 March 2017 on the Council Tax element of the 
Collection Fund  of £4.604m be declared for 2016/17 and shared between this Council, the Police 
and Crime Commissioner for Avon and Somerset and the Avon Authority in proportion to their 
2016/17 precepts on the Collection Fund

2. To note that an estimated surplus at 31 March 2017 on the Non-Domestic Rates (NDR) 
element of the Collection Fund of £13.173m be declared for 2016/17 and shared between this 
Council, the Secretary of State  and Avon Fire Authority  in proportion to current year demands 
(Bristol 49%, Secretary of State 50%, Avon Fire and Rescue Service 1%)

Key background / detail:

a. Purpose of report:

The Local Government Finance Act 1992(as amended) requires the Council to determine the 
estimated surplus or deficit on the Collection Fund in respect of Council Tax by 15 January. This will 
enable the presenting authorities (the Police and Crime Commissioner for Avon and Somerset and 
Avon Fire and Rescue) to take into account their share of any surplus before finalising their precepts 
for 2017/18.

Similarly, following the introduction of the Business Rates Retention Scheme from April 2013, in 
accordance with the Non-Domestic Rating (Rates Retention) Regulations 2013, the Council must 
determine the estimated surplus or deficit on the Collection Fund in respect of Business Rates prior 
to 31 January.

b. Key details: 

1. Council Tax

i.The forecast of the Council Tax Collection Fund Balance for the year ending 31 March 2017 is an 
estimated surplus of £4.604.  This is comprised of an in year (16/17) estimated surplus of £3.627m 
and an adjustment for the previous year of £0.977m.  

Page 5

Agenda Item 8



ii. Since calculating the Council Tax Base for 16/17 (in October 2015), 1,899 (1,541 Band D equivalents) 
new residential properties have come on to the market in Bristol.  In addition, the value of benefits 
awarded through the Council Tax Support Scheme has fallen from an estimated £39.910m to 
£37.000m.  Conversely, in line with a growing tax base, discounts and exemptions have also 
increased.  Student exemptions, for example, are estimated to have increased by £1m over the 
original budgeted for 2016/17.

iii. The allocation of the estimated surplus to each of the major presenting authorities is summarised 
below

      

£'000

Bristol City Council 3,945          
Avon & Somerset Police and Crime Commissioner 477             
Avon Fire Authority 182             

4,604          

2. NNDR

I. The forecast of the Non-Domestic Rates Collection Fund Balance for the year ending 31 March 2017 
is an estimated surplus of £13.173m.  Although there is an estimated in-year loss of £5.342m 
reported for 2016/17, the estimated overall surplus for distribution in 2017/18 is principally due to 
the volatility around Business Rates appeals.  Concerns around, potentially, very large appeals during 
2015/16 resulted in the assumption that, as at the end of March 2016, there would need to be a 
significant increase in the provision for appeals.

II. The Council subsequently received advice which resulted in an alternative accounting treatment 
being applied at the end of the last financial year.  The reversal of this sum back into the Collection 
Fund makes up the majority of the surplus as reported.  The Council continues to monitor the 
situation

III. The allocation of the estimated surplus to the Secretary of State and the relevant presenting 
authorities is summarised in the table below.

          

£'000

Bristol City Council 6,455
Central Government 6,586
Avon Fire Authority 132

13,173

Page 6



Cabinet – Report

Cabinet
10 January 2017

Report Title: Collection Fund – Estimated Council Tax and Business Rates Surplus 2016/17

Ward: City Wide

Strategic Director: Anna Klonowski – Interim Strategic Director Resources

Report Author: Denise Murray - Service Director - Finance

Contact telephone no. 0117 3576255
& email address Denise.murray@bristol.gov.uk

Purpose of the report:

To determine the estimated Collection Fund surplus as at 31 March 2017

Recommendation for the Mayor’s approval:

1. To note that an estimated surplus at 31 March 2017 on the Council Tax element of 
the Collection Fund  of £4.604m be declared for 2016/17 and shared between this 
Council, the Police and Crime Commissioner for Avon and Somerset and the Avon 
Authority in proportion to their 2016/17 precepts on the Collection Fund

2. To note that an estimated surplus at 31 March 2017 on the Non-Domestic Rates 
(NDR) element of the Collection Fund of £13.173m be declared for 2016/17 and shared 
between this Council, the Secretary of State  and Avon Fire Authority  in proportion to 
current year demands (Bristol 49%, Secretary of State 50%, Avon Fire and Rescue 
Service 1%)

Page 7



Cabinet – Report

The proposal:

1. The Local Government Finance Act 1992(as amended) requires the Council to determine the 
estimated surplus or deficit on the Collection Fund in respect of Council Tax by 15 January. This 
will enable the precepting authorities (the Police and Crime Commissioner for Avon and 
Somerset and Avon Fire and Rescue) to take into account their share of any surplus before 
finalising their precepts for 2017/18.

Similarly, following the introduction of the Business Rates Retention Scheme from April 2013, 
in accordance with the Non-Domestic Rating (Rates Retention) Regulations 2013, the Council 
must determine the estimated surplus or deficit on the Collection Fund in respect of Business 
Rates prior to 31 January.

2. Income from Council Tax and Business Rates are fixed at the start of each financial year.  Any 
variations from this are realised through the Collection Fund and are distributed in the following 
two financial years (based on estimated in the following year and actuals in the subsequent 
year.)  The Council is required by statute to maintain a Collection Fund separate from the 
General Fund. The Collection Fund accounts independently for:

 Income into the Fund: the Fund is credited with the amount of receipts of Council 
Tax and (Non Domestic Rates) NDR it collects.

 Payments out of the Fund: in relation to Council Tax payments that are made to the 
Council and the two major precepting authorities (Avon and Somerset Police and 
Crime Commissioner and Avon Fire Authority ). In relation to NDR payments that are 
made to the Council, the Secretary of State and the Avon Fire Authority.

2016/17 Estimated Surplus for Council Tax

3. The forecast of the Council Tax Collection Fund Balance for the year ending 31 March 2017 is an 
estimated surplus of £4.604.  This is comprised of an in year (16/17) estimated surplus of 
£3.627m and an adjustment for the previous year of £0.977m.

4. The estimated surplus is due to a combination of factors, the most significant of which relate to 
a more buoyant than expected housing market and a reduction in the number of benefit 
recipients receiving council tax reductions.

5. Since calculating the Council Tax Base for 16/17 (in October 2015), 1,899 (1,541 Band D 
equivalents) new residential properties have come on to the market in Bristol. Growth of this 
magnitude was not anticipated at the time.  Indications suggest the house market will remain 
buoyant during 2017/18.  The Tax Base for 2017/18 allows for this continued growth.

6. In addition, the value of benefits awarded through the Council Tax Support Scheme has fallen 
from an estimated £39.910m to £37.000m.  This is following a trend identified over the last few 
years. The table shows the split between the budgeted and likely actual cost of the scheme split 
between working age and pensioner claimants.

Page 8



Cabinet – Report

      Value of benefits claimed
Working Age Pensioner Total

£m £m £m
Council Tax Base Estimate for 2016/17 25.544 14.368 39.912
Estimated Outturn 2016/17 24.168 12.832 37.000
Difference 1.376 1.536 2.912
Percentage Reduction 5.39% 10.69%

7. Conversely, in line with a growing tax base, discounts and exemptions have also increased.  
Student exemptions, for example, are estimated to have increased by £1m over the original 
budgeted for 2016/17.

8. The estimated surplus is distributed to the major precepting authorities in proportion to the 
current year’s demands and precepts on the Collection Fund.  A detailed determination of the 
estimated Council Tax Collection Fund surplus for 2016/17 is shown in Appendix A and the 
allocation of the estimated surplus to each of the major precepting authorities is summarised 
below:

£'000

Bristol City Council 3,945          
Avon & Somerset Police and Crime Commissioner 477             
Avon Fire Authority 182             

4,604          

2016/17 Estimated Deficit for Non-Domestic Rates (NDR)

9. The introduction of the Business Rates Retention Scheme from April 2013 has increased 
uncertainty and volatility in Council funding.  The estimation of the NDR base in January sets the 
amount of NDR to be distributed from the Collection Fund to preceptors in the following year.  
Any variances to the base during the year will be borne by the Collection Fund and distributed 
to preceptors in future years through the declaration of a surplus on the fund.

10. Any year-end estimated surplus/deficit is distributed to the Secretary of State and relevant 
precepting authorities in proportion to the current year demands and NDR payments on the 
Collection Fund.  The percentages are fixed in accordance with The Non-Domestic Rating (Rates 
Retention) Regulations 2013.  The forecast of the Non-Domestic Rates Collection Fund Balance 
for the year ending 31 March 2017 is an estimated surplus of £13.173m.

11. The business rates income which each billing authority collects is determined by reference to 
local rating lists maintained by the Valuation Office Agency.  These lists are subject to variation 
between revaluations as a result of physical changes (either to the property or the locality) and 
appeals.  The amount of business rates income collected by billing authorities therefore varies 
year on year.  The major factors giving rise to changes include:

Page 9



Cabinet – Report

 Reductions to the rateable value of business properties arising from appeals.  Once settled 
the appeal may be backdated resulting in the Council having to refund several years rates 
from a single year’s income.

 Changes in the rateable values of very large business properties such as power stations or 
hospitals can have a material effect.

 Business properties switching between rating lists.  Large business properties which cross 
boundaries, such as ports, appear in the list which contains the largest area.  Changes in 
these properties could lead to large amounts of rateable value switching from one list to 
another. Similarly locally rated business with infrastructure covering large areas of the 
Country, for example telecommunication companies, may apply to switch to the national 
list.

12. Although there is an estimated in-year loss of £5.342m reported for 2016/17, the estimated 
overall surplus for distribution in 2017/18 is principally due to the volatility around Business 
Rates appeals.  Concerns around, potentially, very large appeals during 2015/16 resulted in the 
assumption that, as at the end of March 2016, there would need to be a significant increase in 
the provision for appeals. This was primarily attributable to a request for mandatory business 
rates relief submitted to the Council during 2015/16 on behalf of NHS Trusts.  This is a national 
issue, for which the Council subsequently received advice which resulted in an alternative 
accounting treatment being applied at the end of the last financial year.  The reversal of this 
sum back into the Collection Fund makes up the majority of the surplus as reported.  The 
Council continues to monitor the situation.

13. The Council is required to provide for potential appeals from its business rates income.  
Calculations for the provision are based upon the Valuation Office Agency ‘Settled and 
Outstanding” proposals at end March reports. These reports show all appeals that have been 
lodged for each authority against the 2010 valuation listing including those which were agreed, 
dismissed, withdrawn or are still outstanding.  This list is analysed into “types” of appeal.  The  
average success rate and the percentage reduction in rateable value for those appeals which 
were successful is considered along with the potential for the backdating of any appeals 
decisions and the estimated annual cost was then adjusted by the ratings multiplier for the 
relevant year. Local intelligence is used alongside statistical modelling to inform decision 
making.

14.  As the amounts involved can be significant the Council takes a very prudent approach when 
calculating any likely impact of an appeal. Officers are satisfied as to the robustness of the 
estimated additional contribution to the appeals provision of £7.1m. The provision has been 
compared to that of both our nearest neighbours and similar sized authorities nationally. 
Bristol’s appeals provision is very close to the national median, which would suggest the 
provision has been well calculated.

15. The detailed determination of the estimated NDR Collection Fund surplus for 2016/17 is shown 
in Appendix B and the allocation of the estimated surplus to the Secretary of State and the 
relevant precepting authorities is summarised in the table below.

Page 10



Cabinet – Report

£'000

Bristol City Council 6,455
Central Government 6,586
Avon Fire Authority 132

13,173

Consultation and scrutiny input:

a. Internal consultation:
Revenues Manager, Revenues and Benefits – Citizen Services

b. External consultation:
Not Applicable

Other options considered:
None

Risk management / assessment: 

There are a number of risks associated with estimating the amount of Council Tax and Business Rates 
collected during the year. These include;

 Reductions to the rateable value of business properties arising from appeals.  Once settled the 
Council may have to settle several years business rates from a single year’s income.

 Changes to the rateable values of very large business properties such as power stations or 
hospitals can have a material effect on business rate collection.

 Business Properties switching between rating lists. This can include large cross boundary 
properties switching from one list to another or joining the central list.

 Difficulty in estimating Council Tax discounts and exemptions, including the take-up of the 
Council Tax Support Scheme.

Public sector equality duties: 
There are no proposals in this report which require either a statement as to the relevance of public sector 

equality duties or an Equalities Impact Assessment.

Eco impact assessment
Not applicable

Resource and legal implications:

Finance

a. Financial (revenue) implications:
Page 11



Cabinet – Report

The estimated surplus or deficit on the Collection Fund will carry forward to 2017/18 and will impact on 
the Council’s budget position for that year.

Advice given by Tony Whitlock (Finance Manager – Corporate Finance)
Date December 2016

b. Financial (capital) implications:
Not applicable
Advice given by Tony Whitlock (Finance Manager – Corporate Finance)
Date Not applicable

Comments from the Corporate Capital Programme Board:
Not applicable

c. Legal implications:
The Local Government Finance Act 1992(as amended) requires the Council to determine the estimated 
surplus or deficit on the Collection Fund in respect of Council Tax prior to 15 January in order that the 
precepting authorities (the Police and Crime Commissioner for Avon  and Somerset and Avon Fire and 
Rescue) to take into account their share of any surplus before finalising their precepts for 2017/18.

The Non-Domestic Rating (Rates Retention) Regulations 2013, the Council must determine the estimated 
surplus or deficit on the Collection Fund in respect of Business Rates prior to 31 January.

Advice given by Shahzia Daya – Service Director Legal and Democratic Services
Date December 2016

d. Land / property implications:
Not applicable

e. Human resources implications:
Not applicable

Appendices:. 
Appendix 1 – Estimated Council Tax Collection Fund Account 2016/17
Appendix 2 – Estimated Non-Domestic Rates Collection Fund Account 2016/17

Access to information (background papers):
Working papers held in Corporate Finance

Page 12



Cabinet – Report

Council Tax Collection Fund Adjustment Account                                                            APPENDIX 1

2014/15 2015/16 2015/16 2016/17

Actual

Estimate as per 
Feb '16 Budget 

Report Actual

Estimate 
December 

2016
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Income

(195,553) Council Tax Income (201,210) (202,668) (215,032)

Expenditure

Precepts
160,076 Bristol City Council 169,026 169,026 178,403

19,709 Police 20,819 20,819 21,560
7,510 Fire 7,933 7,933 8,216

Bad and Doubtful Debts
1,837 Write Offs 1,600 2,081 3,226

189,132 Total Expenditure 199,378 199,859 211,405

(6,421) (Surplus)/Deficit for the year (1,832) (2,809) (3,627)

(5,617) Accumulated (surplus)/deficit Bfwd (7,266) (7,266) (5,406)
4,772 Distribution of prior years estimated surplus 4,669 4,669 4,429

(6,421) (Surplus)/Deficit for the year (1,832) (2,809) (3,627)
(7,266) (4,429) (5,406) (4,604)

Distribution of estumated Collection Fund surplus:
(3,992) Bristol City Council (3,785) (4,624) (3,945)

(490) Police (466) (570) (477)
(187) Fire (178) (212) (182)

(4,669) (4,429) (5,406) (4,604)

Split of the 2016/17 estimated surplus
Balance brought forward from 2015/16 (977)
Distribution of 2016/17 estimated surplus (3,627)

(4,604)

Page 13



Cabinet – Report

Business Rates Collection Fund Adjustment Account                                                         APPENDIX 2

2014/15 2015/16 2015/16 2016/17

Actual

Estimate as 
per Feb '16 

Budget Report Actual

Estimate 
December 

2016
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Income

(209,982) Business rates income (210,000) (210,975) (224,748)

Expenditure
Payments to Preceptors

102,419 Central Government 104,028 103,677 108,137
101,368 Bristol City Council 100,645 101,604 105,974

2,054 Avon Fire 2,089 2,074 2,163
5,619 Disregarded amounts 5,713 0 4,094

723 Cost of collection allowance 721 721 722

Bad and Doubbtful debts
1,862 Write offs 1,279 1,775 1,900

Appeals losses and provision
3,514 Increase/(decrease) in appeals provision 10,000 (2,916) 7,100

217,559 Total Expenditure 224,475 206,935 230,090

7,577 (Surplus)/Deficit for the year 14,475 (4,040) 5,342

Accumulated (surplus)/deficit
7,464 Accumulated (surplus)/deficit BFwd 9,476 9,476 (2,586)

(5,565) Distribution of prior year estimated deficit (8,022) (8,022) (15,929)
7,577 (Surplus)/deficit for the year 14,475 (4,040) 5,342
9,476 15,929 (2,586) (13,173)

Distribution of estimated collection fund surplus
4,011 Central Government 7,965 (1,293) (6,587)
3,931 Bristol City Council 7,805 (1,267) (6,455)

80 Avon Fire Authroity 159 (26) (132)
8,022 15,929 (2,586) (13,173)

Page 14



1

CABINET – 10 January 2017

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF AGENDA ITEM 9

Report title: Period 7 (end of October) Finance Report
Wards affected: All
Strategic Director: Anna Klonowski
Report Author: Denise Murray: Service Director: Finance & s.151 Officer

RECOMMENDATION for the Mayor’s approval:

It is recommended that the Mayor:

1. Notes the contents of the Report and in particular the continuing seriousness of the 
General Fund financial position of £17.5m forecast outturn deficit, as at the end of 
October 2016.  This represents a net decrease to the deficit of £10m, being increases 
of £0.9m less decreases of £10.9m, from end of September forecast and is mainly as a 
result of incorporating mitigating actions reported to cabinet in December 2016, which 
have now been agreed through Full Council on 13th December 2016

2. Cabinet where appropriate, continue to work with Officers in undertaking mitigating 
actions to bring the General Fund position closer to balance, in particular endorsing the 
actions to be led by the Interim Chief Executive, Service Director: Finance and 
Strategic Leadership Team set out at paragraph 11;

3. Agrees the following in relation to the Capital Programme:
a. To note the total net movement in the Capital Programme from £221.2m to 

£222.8m, being the Capital Budget Adjustments reported to cabinet in 
December 2016;

Key background / detail:

1. To provide a progress report on the Council’s overall financial performance against 
revenue and capital budgets for the 2016/17 financial year that were approved by 
Council on the 16th February 2016. The report focuses on significant variances to 
meeting the budget in 2016/17 in order to take timely actions to deliver a balanced 
position at year end.

Key details: 

2. Key messages from the Period 7 Budget Monitoring:

The Council is in a serious financial position forecasting a General Fund revenue 
position of £17.5m forecast outturn deficit before further mitigating actions or use of 
general reserves. This represents a net decrease to the deficit of £9.5m, being 
increases of £0.9m less decreases of £10.9m, from end of September forecast.  
Although there has been a reduction in the forecast outturn deficit, the remaining 
deficit must be addressed to ensure that we end the financial year in a balanced 
position.

Page 15

Agenda Item 9



2

The movement in the deficit arises mainly from incorporating mitigating actions 
reported to cabinet in December 2016.  This includes the flexible use of in-year capital 
receipts to fund transformation activity allowing the release of c£5.3m of reserves, the 
review of the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) allowing for a reduced MRP charge 
in 2016/17 of £4.3m and the release of grant funding to revenue (Energy Services) of 
c£1.3m. 

As outlined in previous reports, the interim Chief Executive has put in place a number 
of activities which should bring the position closer to balance and details of the actual 
and potential impact of these actions are included in this report.  It should be noted that 
as savings are being identified through the Corporate Savings Programme, as they are 
validated, these savings are secured by reducing relevant budgets across directorates.  
Therefore, net revenue service budgets are reducing through the financial year.

In addition to the mitigating actions highlighted in previous reports, the Council is 
extending its freeze on non-essential spend.  The spending freeze is a positive 
management action to protect the Council finances for the medium and longer term in 
a controlled but effective manner.  Non-essential spend  can be considered as all 
spend associated with activities that are not wholly and exclusively funded from; 
specific ring fenced grant, other external funding (cash neutral to the Councils General 
Fund) or funded from trading / operating income. The main exceptions are where 
failing to act would expose the council to a statutory, regulatory or legal risk or 
presents an imminent danger to the public and staff. The impact of the freeze in 
reducing the council’s actual and forecasted 2016/17 expenditure will be monitored 
and will be reflected in future reports. 

Capital spending in year is forecast to be £225.9m compared to the current budget of 
£222.8m, resulting in a forecast overspend of £3.1m.  Movements in the capital 
programme have been identified, being slippage from 2016/17 into 2017/18, resulting 
in a current budget as at Period 7 of £222.8m.  Further adjustments of £1.6m were 
reported to Cabinet in December 2016, and are now reflected in the Capital 
Programme.

Page 16



3

BRISTOL CITY COUNCIL
CABINET

10th January 2017

REPORT TITLE: Period 7 (end of October) Finance Report 

Ward(s) affected by this report: All

Strategic Director: Anna Klonowski

Report Author: Denise Murray, Service Director: Finance & s.151 Officer

Contact telephone no. 0117 9222419
& e-mail address: Denise.Murray@bristol.gov.uk

Purpose of the report:
To provide a progress report on the Council’s overall financial performance, including 
against the approved revenue and capital budgets for the 2016/17 financial year that were 
approved by Council on the 16th February 2016.

RECOMMENDATION for the Mayor’s approval:

It is recommended that the Mayor:

1. Notes the contents of the Report and in particular the continuing seriousness of the 
General Fund financial position of £17.5m forecast outturn deficit, as at the end of 
October 2016.  This represents a net decrease to the deficit of £10m, being increases 
of £0.9m less decreases of £10.9m, from end of September forecast and is mainly as a 
result of incorporating mitigating actions reported to cabinet in December 2016, which 
have now been agreed through Full Council on 13th December 2016;

2. Cabinet where appropriate, continue to work with Officers in undertaking mitigating 
actions to bring the General Fund position closer to balance, in particular endorsing the 
actions to be led by the Interim Chief Executive, Service Director: Finance and 
Strategic Leadership Team set out at paragraph 11;

3. Agrees the following in relation to the Capital Programme:
b. To note the total net movement in the Capital Programme from £221.2m to 

£222.8m, being the Capital Budget Adjustments reported to cabinet in 
December 2016;

Background

Page 17



4

1. The Report provides information and analysis on the Council’s financial performance 
and use of resources to the end of Period 7 of 2016/17.  Council set its budget for the 
2016/17 on 16th February 2016.  The report focuses on forecast variances to meeting 
the budget for 2016/17, in order to take timely actions to deliver a balanced position at 
year end.

2. The Council is in a serious financial position forecasting a General Fund revenue 
position of £17.5m forecast outturn deficit before further mitigating actions or use of 
general reserves. This represents a net decrease to the deficit of £9.5m, being 
increases of £0.9m less decreases of £10.9m, from end of September forecast.  
Although there has been a reduction in the forecast outturn deficit, the remaining deficit 
must be addressed now to ensure that we end the financial year in a balanced position 
and avoid unnecessarily making the financial challenges in future years larger.

3. The movement in the deficit arises mainly from incorporating mitigating actions 
reported to cabinet in December 2016.  This includes the flexible use of in-year capital 
receipts to fund transformation activity allowing the release of c£5.3m of reserves, the 
review of the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) allowing for a reduced MRP charge 
in 2016/17 of £4.3m and the release of grant funding to revenue (Energy Services) of 
c£1.3m. 

4. As outlined in previous reports, the interim Chief Executive has put in place a number 
of activities which should bring the position closer to balance and details of the actual 
and potential impact of these actions are included in this report.  It should be noted that 
as savings are being identified through the Corporate Savings Programme, as they are 
validated, these savings are secured by reducing relevant budgets across directorates.  
Therefore, net revenue service budgets are reducing through the financial year.

5. In addition to the mitigating actions highlighted in previous reports, the Council is 
extending its freeze on non-essential spend.  The spending freeze is a positive 
management action to protect the Council finances for the medium and longer term in 
a controlled but effective manner.  Non-essential spend  can be considered as all 
spend associated with activities that are not wholly and exclusively funded from; 
specific ring fenced grant, other external funding (cash neutral to the Councils General 
Fund) or funded from trading / operating income. The main exceptions are where 
failing to act would expose the council to a statutory, regulatory or legal risk or 
presents an imminent danger to the public and staff. The impact of the freeze in 
reducing the council’s actual and forecasted 2016/17 expenditure will be monitored 
and will be reflected in future reports. 

6. This action is required not only to mitigate the forecast outturn deficit in this financial 
year, but also to ensure a balanced budget for next financial year, as many of the 
actions taken to date to manage the position in this financial year are one-off rather 
than recurring solutions.

7. Future reports will include recommendations on mitigating actions, where required.  

A - Revenue Expenditure

Page 18



5

8. The Council’s overall annual revenue spend is managed across a number of areas:

a. The General Fund with a net budget of £345.4m, providing revenue funding for 
the majority of the Council’s services;

b. The Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) (£175m in 2016/17), which is ring-fenced 
for schools funding, overseen by the Schools’ Forum, and managed within the 
People Directorate;

c. Public Health, a ring-fenced grant of £36.2m in 2016/17, must be spent to 
support the delivery of the Public Health Outcomes Framework and is managed 
within Neighbourhoods;

d. The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) of £152.7m gross spend in 2016/17, is 
reported separately to the general fund, and is managed within Neighbourhoods.

9. Each area represents a significant element of the Council’s overall revenue 
expenditure.  Further details of the current spend position against budget is provided in 
the remainder of this section.

General Fund
10.Table 2 provides a summary of how each directorate is performing against the 

general fund revenue budget for the 2016/17 financial year. Actions are in progress 
and further actions are being identified to manage and mitigate the identified budget 
pressures and risks.  The Interim Chief Executive, Strategic and Service Directors are 
actively identifying proposals to minimise the gap, with all budget holders ensuring the 
forecasting is as accurate as possible. 

11.As previously reported, officers have established a series of work streams designed 
to reduce the deficit   A summary of the actions taken and outcomes of these actions 
is summarised below:

Item Action Taken Potential 
Financial Impact

1. Review of the 
Capital Programme

 The programme has been reviewed 
and £63.2m of capital expenditure 
has been re-profiled from 2016/17 
into 2017/18.  The capital 
programme will continue to be 
reviewed and the outcomes of this 
will be reflected in the Medium Term 
Financial Plan.

 The funding sources of the capital 
programme, identifying an element 
of grant funding that can be applied 
to revenue rather than capital.  The 
benefit of this is reflected in the 
forecast for the Place Directorate.

There is a benefit 
to the capital 
financing in year of 
£0.1m, which is 
already included in 
the forecast 
underspend.

c£1.3m released 
grant funding to 
general revenue 
fund.

2. Voluntary 
Severance 
Programme

This was implemented through 
September 2016.  The total reduction 
across 2 years is £9.3m which 
includes reductions secured against 
Public Health, DSG & HRA etc. also. 

There is a 
reduction in spend 
of £3.9m in 
2016/17 and a 
further £5.4m in 

Page 19



6

These savings are reflected in the 
current forecasts. This has resulted in 
a workforce reduction of 
approximately 303 staff. 

2017/18.

3. Technical 
Accounting 
Adjustments

 There has been a thorough review 
of the use of reserves.  £2.4m has 
been released from reserves to 
reduce the deficit and is reflected in 
the forecast;

 We have reviewed the Council’s 
potential use of new powers on the 
Flexible Use of Capital Receipts, 
and a report was presented to Full 
Council on 13th December 2016 with 
appropriate recommendations.  This 
is now reflected in the forecast for 
the Corporate savings Programme;

 An initial review of the Council’s 
Minimum Revenue Provision Policy 
has been concluded and the 
relevant conclusions were 
recommended to Full Council on 
13th December. This is now reflected 
in the forecast for Other Budgets;

 MRP Clawback – this is being 
reviewed as part of the review on 
the Council’s MRP policy and further 
clarification is being sought, and a 
further update will be provided in 
future reports.

 A review of VAT has commenced, 
with initial data provided to external 
advisors to assess potential savings, 
which is free of charge, prior to 
commissioning a formal review. 

 £2.4m reduction 
in forecast 
outturn deficit,  
included in 
forecast;

 Fund £5.3m 
transformational 
costs from 
Capital Receipts 
& release 
funding from 
reserves

 MRP Base 
Budget 
adjustment in- 
year reduction to 
capital financing 
costs of £4.3m

4. Capital Disposals 
Programme
See paragraph 36 & 
37

Property Services and the Property 
Board (officer group) have reviewed 
the programme of capital disposals, 
identifying assets for sale in 2016/17 
through to 2019/20 and beyond.  
Capital receipts are estimated to be 
c£20m in total for the current and next 
2 years, however more work is 
required to increase this. 

 Capital receipts 
of £5.3m are 
currently 
estimated for 
16/17, with a 
further £15m 
over 2017/18 & 
2018/19.

5. Reduction in non-
essential expenditure

As reported above, the Council has 
extended its spending freeze on non-
essential expenditure (see para 5 to 
7).  The financial impact of this will be 
reported in future reports. 

 There has been 
a reduction in 
marketing and 
advertising 
forecast spend 
by £0.5m;

 Reduction of 

Page 20



7

equipment spend 
of £150k

6. Review of Income All Service Directors have been 
tasked with reviewing sources of 
income and reviewing inflation 
assumptions on fees and charges.

To date 
Directorates have 
not identified any 
new income 
streams for review.

7. Review of agency 
spend

 All off-contract agency spend has 
been reviewed – all such contracts 
to be ended by 31st December 
2016. Reductions in forecast 
agency spend is reflected in the 
forecasts;  

 Review of all agency staff who have 
been with the authority for more 
than 52 weeks to either end their 
engagement or review their 
employment terms;

 The Council has extended its 
spending freeze on non-essential 
expenditure, which includes 
stopping recruitment to permanent 
or temporary roles not considered 
business critical.

 The number of 
FTE agency staff 
has reduced from 
205 in Sept to 
170.5 in Nov.

 Agency spend 
has reduced from 
£906k in Sept to 
£745k in Nov.

8. Budget Review 
Meetings

The Interim Chief Executive and s.151 
Officer have completed a further round 
of review meetings in early December, 
which were directed at reviewing the 
budget position for 2017/18.

12.The following forecasts are based on actual expenditure to the end of October 2016 
and Budget Managers’ estimates of future spending for the rest of the financial year, as 
approved by each DLT.  The net overall forecast outturn of £17.5m represents 5.1% of 
the General Fund net revenue budget.

13.The following table provides a summary of the general fund revenue position at 
directorate level.  A more detailed analysis is provided at Appendix A.  Also included in 
the appendix is information on Year to Date spend, compared to Year to Date net 
budget.  This is provided for additional information.  Budgets are profiled equally across 
the year, but spending profiles may be different.  

Table 2: General Fund Forecast Net Expenditure

Page 21



8

General Fund Revenue Budgets -      
Period 7

 Net Budget
Forecasst 

Outturn

Forecast 
Outturn 

Variance 
(Under)/Over 

Spend 

Forecast 
Outturn 

Variance at 
Period 6

Directorate £m £m £m £m
People 207.1 220.3 13.2 13.3 
Place 17.8 24.1 6.3 7.3 
Neighbourhoods 69.1 68.7 -0.4 -1.0 
Resources 25.5 28.8 3.2 3.2
City Director 6.9 6.6 -0.3 -0.4 
Corporate Savings Programme (Net 
Budget)

-9.2 1.3 10.5 15.8


SUB TOTAL – SPENDING ON 
SERVICES 317.1 349.8 32.7 38.2 

Other Budgets * 28.6 15.8 -12.8 -8.3 
Released from Reserves 0.0 -2.4 -2.4 -2.4
TOTAL 345.7 363.2 17.5 27.5 

*Other Budgets includes capital financing & borrowing costs, un-apportioned central overheads and contingencies.

14.The following chart provides a trend analysis of the forecast outturn, by directorate, 
reported since quarter 1, end of June 2016.

Chart 1: Trend Analysis of Forecast Outturn

14.1 People Directorate - £13.2m Pressure

Page 22



9

2016/17 Budget Gross 
Expenditure

£m

Gross Income

£m

Net Revenue 
Budget

£m
People Directorate 462.7 (255.6) 207.1

The major areas of identified pressures within the People Directorate are within 
Children’s and Adults’ Social Care.  The reported position of £13.2m is after mitigating 
actions identified and there are further mitigating activities in development to achieve 
greater reductions this year. The most significant cause of pressures is both a mix of 
demographic pressures of both an increasing child population (15% in the last ten 
years) and an ageing population (21% adults living over 85 than 10 years previously). 
This is combined with a number of legislative changes that increase statutory 
responsibilities of local authorities without sufficient national financing.

Part of the pressure is due to areas of the Medium Term Financial Strategy of 2014-17 
where delivery has not been achieved in full, and this impacting on 2016-17 position. 
They are as follows: 

Overall Target
£m

Delivered
£m

Remaining to 
Deliver

£m
Home Care 3.5 0.6 2.9
Residential Care 4.0 1.3 2.7
Home to School Travel 1.3 0.9 0.4
Trading with Schools 1.6 0.8 0.8

Care & Support Adults - £5.4m Pressure
There are significant pressures in demand for services as set out above and 
specifically due to the increasing numbers of frail older people, people living longer with 
dementia and people living longer with lifelong conditions, which require significant 
input from health and social care services. 

In addition, The Care Act has led to significant increase in demand. The Care Act 
placed a duty on councils to offer carers an assessment of their need. The council 
support 33% more carers in 15/16 than in 14/15.

The Council has just approved the four year strategic plan for Adult Social Care in 
December, which following detailed development with partner agencies sets out a 
longer term approach to managing social care. 

In the current year the following tables set out the pattern of demand. 

Chart 2: Trend in Monthly Residential and Home Care Activity

Page 23



10

April
May

June
July

Augu
st

Se
ptember

Octo
ber

Nove
mber

Dece
mber

Jan
uary

Fe
bruary

Marc
h

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

2015/16 Home Care

2016/17 Home Care

2015/16 Residential & Nursing 
Care

2016/17 Residential & Nursing 
Care

As mentioned in previous Finance Reports, pressures relating to the Supreme Court 
(DOLS) judgement in March 2014 and increases in the number of Mental Health Act 
assessments (assessments where people are in severe mental health crisis which 
poses an immediate threat to themselves or others) has led to a rise in cost of the long 
term packages of aftercare under Section 117 of the Mental Health Act. This 
represents a significant cost pressure to both the NHS and Council.

The new four year plan sets out our new approach to care around a 3 tier model for 
both assessment and support based on principle of: 
 Help to help yourself
 Help when you need it 
 Help to live your life. 

This model will drive both our closer integration with health services and help to 
manage future rising demand.  

Care & Support Children and Families - £3.5m Pressure
In the context of both a rising child population and increasing complexity of need in a 
number of cases, budget pressures are being faced in Children in Care. Whilst the 
numbers of Children in Care have remained around 700 over the last five years, 
against a rising child population, the average unit cost has increased due to an 
increase in the number of out of authority placements from an average of 26 during 
2014/15 to currently 41, resulting in a budget pressure of £2.5m.  

Chart 4: Children and Young People in Out of Authority Residential Placements

Page 24



11

April
May

June
July

Augu
st

Se
ptember

Octo
ber

Nove
mber

Dece
mber

Jan
uary

Fe
bruary

Marc
h

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

2016/17
2015/16
2014/15

Children & Young People in Out of Authority Placements

There also continues to be a significant pressure as a result of increases in special 
guardianship orders (SGOs) and residency orders (ROs). The number in receipt of 
SGO’s and RO’s has increased from 375 in 2014/15 to just fewer than 500 in 2016 
resulting in a budget pressure of £1.8m. However this is balanced in part by some 
positive savings in numbers of children in independent fostering. 

Chart 5: Increase in Numbers of SGO and RO Payments

1 3 5 7 9 11 13 15 17 19 21 23 25
0

50
100
150
200
250
300
350
400
450
500
550

2014/15
2015/16
2016/17

Number of people in receipt of SGO and RO payments

Bi-monthly payments

Early Intervention & Targeted Support - £4.1m Pressure

Page 25



12

The main areas of financial pressure within Early Intervention are in providing care for 
young people with Disabilities in the Preparing for Adulthood service. There is currently 
insufficient budget provision to meet new responsibilities under legislation of the 
Children and Families Act requiring Local Authorities to support young people up to 25 
prior to adulthood. 

Significant savings have been made in Home to School Travel costs however the 
current planned savings are no longer possible due to expected decrease in prices not 
occurring. In order to deliver these savings and in line with the three tier model 
approach, demand is being managed by promoting more independent means of travel 
such as bus passes rather than taxis.

Local Authorities have a duty to fund accommodation costs of Youth Offenders on 
remand. These are low frequency high cost placements which are currently creating 
significant strain on budgets. Local Authorities can access some funding for this but it is 
insufficient to meet the full cost of placements.

Where a family is homeless but not deemed eligible under the Housing Act, we have a 
responsibility to provide emergency accommodation for children of families under the 
Children and Families Act. Due to the increase in homelessness across Bristol this is a 
financial pressure of £0.6m in 2016/17.

Strategic Commissioning & Commercial Relations - £1.0m Surplus

The pressures outlined as above are in part mitigated by underspends. 

There is a forecast £1.0m underspend in Strategic Commissioning, this primarily 
relates to a reduction in spend on Supporting People contracts due to lower activity 
than expected. 

Summary 

Stringent controls are being applied on expenditure balanced with delivering our basic 
LA Statutory responsibilities for care to achieve the best year end positives.  

14.2 Place Directorate - £6.3m Pressure 

2016/17 Budget Gross 
Expenditure

£m

Gross Income

£m

Net Revenue 
Budget

£m
Place Directorate 121.4 (103.6) 17.8

The directorate is reporting a £6.3m variance to budget which consists of a £9.0m 
pressure within Property offset by surpluses or underspends of (£1.2m) in Transport, 
(£0.2m) in the Place ABS team, (£0.3m) in Planning and (£1.1m) in Energy while the 
Economy division is forecasting to be on budget. This represents a movement of 
(£1.0m) since Period 6.

Economy – on budget

Page 26



13

There are forecast surpluses of: £0.2m from increased rental income at Filwood Green 
Business Park; £0.1m from trading at the Bottleyard and £0.1m from grant payments 
under Economic Development projects. These are offset by deficits of £0.2m in the 
Place Management account and £0.1m relating to the Temple Quarter Enterprise 
Zone.

The forecast has been adjusted to take into account the agreed amendment to 
Museum Opening hours agreed by Cabinet on 6th September 2016.  The remaining 
variance (£0.2m) relates to the part year effect of the museum operating pressure that 
will be fully mitigated in 2017/18 by this Cabinet decision.  The reported position for 
Period 7 has changed by (£0.1m) since Period 6 and expenditure on grants has been 
reduced in the current financial year to mitigate the spending pressures.

Energy – (£1.1m) Surplus
There is anticipated to be a shortfall in rechargeable income from the HRA and Trading 
for Schools in the Energy (utility) Purchase budget.  This is due to the Energy price 
reduction in recent years being captured as a corporate saving without any 
corresponding reduction in income target for the energy service. This presents a net 
pressure of £638k this year.  There is a £66k income shortfall in District Energy / 
Biomass that is offset by prudential borrowing savings in Wind Energy (£140k). A one-
off saving of £429k is now anticipated as a result of the Green Deal revenue 
contribution to offset these pressures in the current year.

The Energy Budget forecast now includes the adjustment as agreed by Cabinet on 6th 
December 2016 to transfer capital projects to prudential borrowing funding, releasing 
grant to support revenue expenditure.

Place Admin and Business Support (ABS) Team - (£0.2m) Surplus
There are forecast savings against salary budgets in the Admin and Business Support 
(ABS) service of £0.2m.

Property - £9.0m Pressure
The structural pressure in the Property service largely relates to a forecast £7.7m 
shortfall in the delivery of the MTFS savings target (relating to 2015/16 and 2016/17), 
which broadly assumed savings in the following areas:

 Increased return on investment property holdings;
 Reduced running costs from the disposal of admin buildings;
 Reductions in facilities management costs.

There is a £600k historic pressure (since before 2012) on facilities management that 
mostly relates to unachievable recovery on internal trading income target for corporate 
waste management activities.

There is a £125k forecast pressure regarding a potential shortfall on rechargeable 
income for equipment use and maintenance services provided by Fleet to waste 
management (in turn by the Bristol Waste Company). Fleet service is actively exploring 
options with Waste Management team and Bristol Waste to mitigate this pressure 
including reductions on borrowing charge by sale of not-in-use assets under the waste 
contract, and seeking agreement on TUPE maintenance staff to the Bristol Waste 
company. It is expected that these actions if agreed would likely to reduce this revenue 
pressure by a half.

Page 27



14

There is a £153k forecast overspend against the budget for National Non Domestic 
Rates (NNDR) due to the historic absence of budget allocated for M-shed and Junction 
3 when these buildings were constructed in 2011/12 and when budgets were 
centralised since financial year 2014/15. Savings achieved on NNDR for buildings that 
the Council no longer occupy have been separately given up under savings 
programmes.

There is a £125k forecast shortfall in income against the budget target for Markets as a 
result of an historic revenue target, which has not been met for the last 5 years. This 
pressure had been actively managed downwards over the last few years.

There are £137k costs due to increased workload in Security/ staff sickness/ vacancies 
and an urgent review is in hand to mitigate this. 

There is a £100k shortfall in income at the Create centre resulting from loss of external 
tenants due to reduced parking; a letting rationalisation is underway to mitigate this.

There is a £54k shortfall in conference services income from the Passenger shed (old 
station building Temple Meads) due to its poor condition, but the position is expected to 
improve.

Planning – (£0.3m) Surplus
In the Planning division there is a forecast surplus of £0.3m and this is largely due to 
increased income from Development Management fees as well as from savings plans 
being implemented.

Transport – (£1.2m) Surplus
There is a net surplus position in the Transport division of £1.2m in total as a result 
of additional income in Parking Services (£1.2m) and savings from Supported bus 
services (£150k), reduced by additional costs in Park and Ride services of £200k.

Other initiatives currently under review 

The directorate is currently further reviewing service activities that can be stopped. The 
directorate is also working closely with Finance to explore options for refinancing  
Residential Parking Zone capital schemes, where accelerated loan payback is currently 
applied, and potentially extend the payback timeline of the capital borrowing to address 
the current and future transport related cost pressures.

 14.3 Neighbourhoods – (£0.4m) Underspend

2016/17 Budget Gross 
Expenditure

£m

Gross Income

£m

Net Revenue 
Budget

£m
Neighbourhoods 324.7 (255.6) 69.1

The Neighbourhoods directorate is reporting a significant movement in its forecast 
position for the end of Period 7, reporting a forecast surplus of £0.4m compared to a 
surplus of £1.0m forecast at the end of Period 6.  The main reasons for this movement 
are as follows, with more detail included in the paragraphs below:
 Rising demand for temporary emergency accommodation has resulted in an 

Page 28



15

increased forecast pressure in this area of £0.3m;
 Reduced income forecasts within Citizen Services relating to licensing and 
court summonses of £0.3m.

The £0.4m forecast surplus consists of a £0.7m surplus in Waste, a £0.3m surplus in 
Neighbourhoods & Communities and £0.1m surplus in Public Health General Fund, 
offset by pressures of £0.5m in Citizen Services and £0.2m in Housing Services 
General Fund. 

Housing Services - £0.2m pressure

Rising demand for emergency accommodation is resulting in a £0.6m forecast 
overspend within Housing Options: forecast income from Housing Benefits has 
reduced by £0.2m since Period 6 based on revised estimates of the number of claims 
which may not be paid due to provision of insufficient information. This is partially 
offset by additional income from service and accommodation recharges (£0.3m 
underspend) and one-off savings on salaries and payments.
Private Housing and Accessible Homes are forecasting a £0.1m underspend due to 
additional income and some salary savings, which has moved by £0.2m since period 6 
due to budget adjustments to take account of savings made in this service area 
contributing to the corporate savings programme, being £70k Better Care funding and 
£175k additional Licensing income.

Citizen Services: £0.5m pressure
There has been an increase in the forecast pressure during Period 7 of £0.3m, which 
is mainly due to reductions in income of £123k in courts summons within the service 
processing local taxation, and £130k in Licensing under Regulatory Services.

Revenues:
Within Revenues is a budget of £1.6m relating to court summons income. Our 
collection rates of council tax and business rates in cash terms have improved by over 
£2m this year, which has resulted in less court action for non-payment and hence a 
reduction in the overall summons income from courts summons fines, which is 
projecting a pressure of £250k for the year. 

Regulatory Services:
The remaining £0.3m forecast pressure within Citizen Services relates to changes in 
income target assumptions within Regulatory Services, including Pest Control: £0.2m 
and Trading Standards: £0.1m. Measures are being made to address this have 
identified additional income of £150k to offset this.  The remaining pressure relates to 
Licensing, where forecast income has reduced by £130k since period 6. Work is now 
being undertaken to analyse current expenditure against licensing income.

Customer Service Operations:
Underspends reported in period 6 against the Customer Service centre, Customer 
Service points and Translation and Interpreting service totalling £85k have been 
reduced to around breakeven due to increased agency costs.

Welfare Benefits Payments:

Page 29



16

Work has recently been undertaken in this service area to better acknowledge and 
quantify an issue which has been developing over the last year but has until now not 
been reflected in the forecast, being the cost of making Housing Benefits payments for 
emergency accommodation, which is only covered by c.60% subsidy received from 
the Department of Works and pensions.

Although in previous years there was sufficient budget for this growing pressure to be 
contained, the increasing demand for emergency temporary accommodation is also 
increasing the budget pressure in this area.  We are currently estimating a potential 
pressure of c£550k, which it is planned to be managed through a drawdown on 
earmarked reserves set aside for this purpose.

Waste - £0.7m Surplus
Waste Disposal is forecasting a surplus of £0.7m, mainly due to accrued expenditure 
from the previous year (£1.0m) which is no longer required.  

Neighbourhoods & Communities - £0.3m Surplus
The forecast underspend in Neighbourhoods and Communities is made up of £0.2m 
surplus income from Cemeteries and Crematoria and £0.15m underspend in libraries, 
mainly attributable to delayed installation of self-serve machines (£60k).  This is offset 
by overspend on Ashton Court Mansion (£89k).

Public Health General Fund - £0.1m Surplus
Savings of £0.2m have been identified due to early repayment of prudential borrowing 
costs on some schemes within Sports.  This is partly offset by a £60k pressure on the 
Hengrove PFI scheme.

14.4 Resources - £3.2m Pressure 

2016/17 Budget Gross 
Expenditure

£m

Gross Income

£m

Net Revenue 
Budget

£m
Resources 40.0 (14.5) 25.5

Although there have been movements in individual forecasts in Period 7, the overall 
forecast pressure for Resources of £3.2m remains the same for those services that 
remaining within the Directorate.  It should be noted that Bristol Futures and elements 
of Policy, Strategy and Communications have moved within this period to the City 
Director, under the new Strategy and Policy Director that will now manage these 
services.  

The main variance within Resources is within the ICT Service, which has been offset 
by savings in other areas.  The overspend against budget for ICT relates to additional 
hardware and maintenance costs (£2.8m) and software development service increases 
(£1.3m) as a result of growth in additional demand for license costs.  This is in part as a 
result of investment in new technology and digital developments.  The current pressure 
of £3.8m remains the same as Period 6 although there was a slight reduction as shown 
below:

ICT – £3.8m Pressure

Page 30



17

In Period 7, the ICT budget pressure decreased by £0.04m.  This movement relates to 
a forecast reduction in spend on the Information Security budget. 

Active mitigation
The ICT management team are working through a series of opportunities for mitigation 
and further cost reduction. The following actions are being taken:

Review of Agency Spend:
A full review is underway, particularly targeting ICT Delivery, to reduce agency spend.  
This is looking at overall use of contractors/agency and particularly focussing on those 
contractors/agency staff who have been in post longer than 13 weeks. These 
arrangements are being ceased and ICT Delivery will be transitioning to a service 
delivery model that does not incur contingent workforce fees where they are not 
absolutely required. 

Further, any ongoing and future Agency spend will be directed through Guidant with 
remaining off-contract arrangements being ceased. This will relieve both in-year 
pressure and transfer through into 2017/18.

ICT Strategy Review:
An ICT Strategy is currently being developed that will set out our approach to the 
nature, type and size of our ICT estate including how we will provide and/or commission 
those services and associated support. This will enable a more focused set of design 
principles that can be applied to the review of existing ICT estate costs and future 
investment decisions.

Risks identified
The following is a summary of risks that have been identified to the current budget 
position within ICT.  The high level detail is given here. It is important to note that, at 
this point in time, if these items were to occur they would result in expenditure from 
reserves or contingencies.

 Unexpected business demand, such as a result of an Ofsted, or other regulatory 
body, inspection. (For example requiring issue of laptops, tablets);

 Any remedial actions that may be required to achieve compliance with 
connection standards, e.g. Public Service Network (PSN);

 Remedial actions in event of serious cyber or other event, (e.g. ransomware), 
resulting in loss of data/access to key BCC systems and data; actions in event 
of serious incident or natural event , (e.g. terror attack/fire/flood), resulting in loss 
of hardware and subsequent replacement costs;

 Information Commissioners fine in case of Data Breach or Loss (may not be an 
ICT related loss, i.e. may be loss of case papers) and remedial actions in event 
of Data Breach or Loss;

 Remedial actions in event of major supplier commercial failure. 

Human Resources – £0.6m Surplus

Page 31



18

Human Resources continue to report a forecast £0.6m underspend.  This mainly 
relates to £485k savings within transactional HR relating to ongoing and potential 
unfilled vacancies and additional savings released within this service area. A further 
£60k underspend within Redeployment is offset by a pressure incurred through the 
cost of additional senior capacity from September to March to ensure continuity when 
the current Service Director leaves.

HR Risks identified:
 Unfilled vacancies plus staff leaving through VS will deliver savings but may 

increase workplace pressures and the ability of the service to respond to 
organisational requirement during a period of significant workforce change;

 The income target through the Annual Leave top up scheme is dependent on 
staff take-up across the organisation and this may not be possible as staffing 
levels will be lower post-restructure. This may mean that the income target is not 
realised.  Also, staff leaving on VS who are in the scheme will cause loss of 
income in the current year.

Legal Services – £0.1m Surplus
The underspend of £30k reported for Legal Services at Period 6 has now increased to 
£63k, which is a £33k improvement due to minor variances across Legal Services.  
Expenditure can be volatile though and the risks are highlighted below:

Risks Identified (including Legal Services, Electoral Services, Mortuary & 
Coroner, & Register Office):

 demand led and cannot predict its spend – high cost/profile cases could happen  
at any time;

 there may be an increase in an area of work through e.g. court rulings or 
practice; 

 Income is more predictable over the short term as clients are known, but will 
fluctuate over the longer term with changes in external clients as work and 
projects come to an end and new work will need to be  identified; 

 There may be a parliamentary election in 2017 or other smaller elections and 
referenda, which are not currently included in the 4 year budget predictions and 
which would have budget implications; 

 Legislative changes, such as the introduction of medical examiners, could cause 
significant budget pressures; 

 Increases in the number of deaths due to widespread fatalities that could not be 
predicted;

 Births and deaths registration are reactive services and cannot be completely 
estimated. 

Finance – On budget 
Finance continue to review spend on the service budget to minimise the outturn 
forecast spend.  Expenditure is being maintained within budget by holding a number of 
vacancies within the service (full time equivalents FTE’s at the beginning of the 
financial year was 110 and is now being maintained at 97.5 through holding vacancies 
and VS)  and stopping non-essential expenditure against non-staffing budgets. 

As previously reported though, the Finance Transformation work must continue and 
although there are no decisions required of cabinet, it is important to note that the 
finance transformation plan will require funding from the service earmarked reserve. 

Page 32



19

Risks identified
 Unfilled vacancies plus staff leaving through Voluntary Severance will deliver 

savings but may increase workplace pressures and the ability of the service to 
respond to organisational requirement during a period of significant workforce 
change;

 Under resourcing finance can lead to a risk of not meeting the requirements of the 
role of S151 officer;

 Income targets for future years are dependent on effective bidding and provision of 
a value for money service offer. There is a risk associated with the income from 
third parties for future years as a contract is due for renewal at the end of 2017/18.

14.5 City Director - £0.3m Surplus

2016/17 Budget Gross 
Expenditure

£m

Gross Income

£m

Net Revenue 
Budget

£m
City Director 10.7 (3.9) 6.8

Bristol Futures and Policy have moved from Resources to the City Directorate in this 
period, under the new Strategy and Policy Director post.   As a result, City Directorate 
is forecasting a surplus of £0.3m. 

Policy, Strategy and Communications (PSC) - £0.3m Surplus
During this period, there has been a forecast increase in costs of £275k for the 
Devolution programme in 2016/17. The total forecast pressure to the Council for this 
programme is now £300k above the £250k agreed as part of the budget report (to be 
drawdown from reserves). This is largely driven by an increasing need to back fill posts 
across almost all directorates and create more capacity to deliver the current deal and 
develop future deals.  It is proposed that this pressure will be funded from the 
Innovation Fund.

Within the rest of Policy and Planning there are a number of staff vacancies across the 
services that contribute to the current forecast underspend, which will be reviewed as 
part of the forward planning / restructure of the service. 

Bristol Futures - £0.2m Surplus
Bristol Futures has moved under the new strategy and Policy Director in Period 7 and 
is currently under review.  The service is currently forecasting a £202k underspend as 
at P7. This underspend has increased by £54k from P6.  Fixed term external funding is 
being used to reduce staff costs.  Further savings have been made across the budgets 
by reducing operational activity and commissioning.  For future Periods further 
reductions in costs will be seen from significantly reducing the management costs 
through removal of the Service Director post and one of the three Service Manager 
posts.  In addition voluntary severance and vacancy management has reduced staffing 
levels significantly.

Use of Reserves
As at Period 6 the forecast draw down of reserves for Future City Demonstrator costs 
in 2016/17 was £1.1m. For Period 7 this has been revised down to £0.6m due to delays 

Page 33



20

in the Open platform work.  The forecast spend in future years has been re-profiled 
over 3 years as per below:

Period 7 Forecast 
Drawdown 
required

£m

Planned Spend 
2017/18

£m

Planned Spend
2018/19

£m

Total Planned 
Spend

£m

0.6 1.3 0.3 2.2

Management - £0.2m Pressure

The pressure in the Management cost centres has previously been reported and 
relates to employee costs partly offset by a small amount of income (£24k) for charges 
to other companies.

14.6 Corporate Savings Programme - £10.5m Pressure

The current forecast pressure of £10.5m is a reduction of £5.3m since reported at 
Period 6.  This movement reflects the Council’s adoption of the new flexibilities for the 
use of Capital Receipts to fund transformational activity, as approved by Full Council 
on 13th December 2016.  Forecast capital receipts for 2016/17 are £5.3m.

It is expected that the forecast position may fluctuate during the next few months as 
planned restructures are agreed and implemented.

At the beginning of the financial year, the Council had a savings target against the 
Change Programme of £34.7m, which comprised £15.2m undelivered savings from 
2015/16 and £19.5m relating to 2016/17.  For the purposes of this report, we have 
shown a net figure.  The following table provides estimates of the forecast savings 
delivery as at end Period 7 (October 2016). 

Table 3: Summary of Net Corporate Savings Programme Budget Position

£m
2016/17 Change Programme Savings 19.5
2015/16 Undelivered change programme savings 15.2
TOTAL 34.7
Less:
Savings Identified/Secured to address the gap (14.1)
Release of Contingency (6.3)
TOTAL TO BE IDENTIFIED 14.3
Overspend against change programme expenditure 1.5
Less: Use of forecast capital receipts to fund 
transformation activity

(5.3)

TOTAL CHANGE PROGRAMME 10.5

The Council has initiated a Council Wide programme of activities and work streams to 
specifically focus on delivering the savings needed in the current financial year.  This 
has included:

Page 34



21

 A review of all spend against corporate budget lines resulting in reduced 
budgets across areas such as staff expenses, conference and training budgets, 
printing etc.;

 A review of all vacancies to delete any vacant posts that are no longer required, 
resulting in budget reductions;

 All services and directorates developing and preparing savings proposals for 
delivery through the remainder of this financial year;

 A contingency was included in the original programme to mitigate against risks 
of non-delivery of savings or savings double counts.  This has been released; 

 A review is underway of all the Council’s service directorate earmarked 
reserves; 

 In period 8, a further assessment of the risk to delivery is being undertaken, the 
outcome will be reported in the Period 8 Report. 

As savings are validated, budgets across services and directorates are being reduced 
to secure these savings. During Period 7, the value of savings identified to be delivered 
increased which was offset by an element of savings previously identified now not 
deliverable, and this is reflected in the forecast above.  

Within this budget line, there is investment required to facilitate the delivery of some of 
the savings.  There is a current forecast overspend of £1.5 m against these items, 
which includes the delivery of IT solutions.   As part of the current programme of 
activity and to mitigate this overspend, all current planned expenditure is subject to 
review.

The reported pressure in this area mainly relates to savings yet to be identified.  

14.7 Other / Corporate Budgets – (£12.8m) Underspend
The forecast underspend in Period 7 has increased to £12.8m. The main budget in this 
area is the capital financing budget of £19.3m.  It is currently forecast that this budget 
will be underspent by £4.1m as a result of re-profiling of the capital programme.  In 
addition, a further adjustment to the forecast of £4.3m has been made further to the 
amendment to the MRP Policy (agreed at Full Council on 13th December 2016).  This 
area also includes certain contingency budgets and other expenditure budgets of a 
corporate nature, including expenditure on levies.

The Council receives S31 grant each year to cover various business rate reliefs. The 
budget for this financial year was assumed to be £1.0m.  Current forecasts indicate this 
is likely to be £3.0m in this financial year, which is £2.0m above the budgeted amount.  
This is  reflected in the forecast for Other / Corporate Budgets.

Included within the forecast is income from the Port Dividend of £2m.  We have now 
been informed that the actual income will be c£2.6m.  The updated forecast will be 
reflected in the Period 8 Report.

The general contingency included in other budgets stands at £2.8m.  This is held as a 
contingency to cover miscellaneous cost pressures across all service areas.  As 
previously reported, to date £0.8m has been set aside to cover the forecast cost of 

Page 35



22

workforce court ruling and support to the Children’s Service as part of the Ofsted 
Improvement Plan.

Therefore, the remaining contingency is reduced to £2.0m and it is assumed that this 
will be required by the end of the financial year. As reported in the Period 6 report, 
additional pressures have been identified that will require a call on the corporate 
contingency, and these are summarised below.  This includes the costs associated 
with the Corporate ERP system, as detailed in paragraph 36.

Table 4: Summary of General Contingency

£m
Period 6 Available Contingency Balance 2.0
Corporate ERP Project (see paragraph 36) (0.3)
Period 7 Contingency Closing Balance 1.7

Dedicated Schools’ Grant (DSG) - £4.6m Forecast Deficit 

15. In 2016/17, the Council will receive £175m Dedicated Schools’ Grant, which is ring-
fenced and passported through to fund schools.  Schools that have transferred to 
academy status receive their funding directly from the Department of Education – this 
amounts to a further £137.9m.  

16.There continues to be pressures against the high needs block, which is forecast to be 
c£4.6m in the financial year, which includes brought forward pressures from 2015/16 of 
£1.9m.  A further £1.6m was requested from schools in the recent panels to meet the 
needs of children.  The panels applied a thorough challenge process, including peer 
reviews, and managed to reduce this additional pressure by £600k.

17.The service is undertaking significant level of work in conjunction with the Schools 
Forum in order to manage this budget:

a) In April the top up rates were reviewed and reduced across mainstream schools 
which has been followed by a further reduction in September, generating a total 
annual saving of £2.1m

b) an inclusion panel has been created with the aim of reducing pupil exclusions – as 
a result there have only been two secondary exclusions in term 1 compared to 
seventeen in the same period in the previous academic year;

c) special school and Pupil referral unit budgets have also been reviewed, top up and 
site specific rates have been cut by 5% which will generate an annual saving of 
£600k, further work is planned to continue review of special schools and also 
resource bases.

18.Any deficit on the DSG at the year-end would need to be carried forward - thereby 
creating a further pressure for the DSG next year, though this would not impact on the 
Council’s general fund budget.  

Public Health  

19.The ring-fenced Public Health service is currently forecasting an overspend of £1.8m.  

Page 36



23

This is mainly due to a government in year cut of the grant of 7.6% in year during 
2015/16 and further 2% cut to the grant this year.  As a reduction in the grant was 
anticipated, Public Health are managing this overspend to prevent impact on service 
delivery through the Public Health reserves built up for this purpose. The reserve 
currently has a balance of £4.8m and is as a result of underspends in previous years.  
This will be reduced by the £1.8m to £3m, assuming the level of forecast overspend 
remains the same.  Therefore, there is no impact on the general fund of this overspend 
in this financial year. However the service is currently undertaking a thorough financial 
review to ensure that delivery is brought within the new budget envelope, reflecting key 
priorities.

 
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 

20.The following is a summary of the HRA budget position as at the end of Period 7.  
Further detail is included as part of Appendix A to the report.

Table 5: Housing Revenue Account Budget Forecast 

HOUSING REVENUE 
ACCOUNT - Period 7

Gross Exp     
£m

Gross 
Income   

£m

Revised 
Net 

Budget   
£m

 Forecast 
Outturn 

£m

Forecast 
Outturn 

Variance 
£m

Period  6 
Forecast 
Outturn 

Variance 
£m

Strategy, Planning & 
Governance 24.7 -131.3 -106.6 -107.5 -0.8 -0.7
Responsive Repairs 47.4 -17.4 30.0 30.6 0.5 0.5
Planned Programmes 18.0 -1.3 16.7 14.5 -2.2 -2.1
Estate Management 16.2 -2.1 14.2 14.0 -0.2 -0.2
HRA Financing & Funding 44.7 1.0 45.7 45.7 0.0 0.0
HOUSING REVENUE 
ACCOUNT TOTAL 151.0 -151.0 0.0 -2.7 -2.7 -2.5

21.There is currently a forecast underspend within the HRA of £2.7m.  This is the result of 
the following:

• Savings released in Strategy, Planning and Governance through employee 
reductions and review of training and stationery budgets;

• There are pressures in responsive repairs due to greater than budgeted relets 
(£0.5m).

• The Investment Review Plan (in response to imposed rent reductions planned for 
the HRA) has changed the paint programme in planned programmes resulting in a 
saving against budget; Contractor issues has also lead to some delays, resulting in 
£0.7m underspend.  A housing procurement specialist is being recruited who when 
in post, should significantly reduce the risk of procurement delays and enhance 
contract management generally.

22.Any under or overspend at the year-end will increase or decrease the HRA Reserve 
and therefore this does not impact on the General Fund.  However, the impact of the 
1% rent reduction and other proposed government changes mean that the current HRA 

Page 37



24

Business Plan is not sustainable in the long term. The Business Plan is being re-
calibrated to reflect what is a very financially challenging future.   

B - Managing Savings

23.To ensure that there is transparency and clarity in relation to the source of savings 
(from which department and service area from which the saving is to be delivered) and 
avoid any possible double counting etc, we are monitoring savings using a single 
savings tracker.  This will be reported under each directorate and will be risk assessed 
for full delivery within the planned timescales.

24.Due to the severity of the forecast outturn variance (potential deficit of £17.5m), the 
Interim Chief Executive, supported by the Service Director: Finance (s.151 Officer), 
have put in train a number of actions as outlined (with current progress) in paragraph 
11.

C - Reserves  

25.The balance on the general reserve will be reviewed annually in setting the budget and 
in the context of the MTFS and the risks to which the Council is exposed. The balance 
on the General Reserve is £20m and at present the Interim Chief Executive and 
Service Director: Finance (s.151 officer) are taking all appropriate actions to avoid any 
utilisation in 2016/17.  This will be kept under constant review.  

26.At the start of the financial year the Council had general fund earmarked reserves of 
£106m. Some of these reserves will be spent during this financial year and others will  
be earmarked for specific purposes with spend to be incurred in future years.   

27.A review of all existing earmarked reserves is being progressed and where reserves 
are identified as no longer required for the purpose that they were earmarked, they will 
be released to the Operational Reserve and made available to mitigate the financial 
pressures in this financial year.  A total of £2.4m has so far been identified that could 
be released from reserves and this has been included in the forecast reported in Table 
2. 

28. In addition, as already summarised in paragraph 11, the Council is reviewing a range of 
technical accounting items.  In the Period 6 report, this identified the new flexibilities to 
use capital receipts to fund transformation activities, with a report to Full Council on 
13th December 2016.  The impact of this has been reflected in the forecasts.

D - Capital Programme  

29.The capital programme changes during the year as the phasing of schemes is 

Page 38



25

reviewed and the notifications of additional schemes and resourcing are received (to 
the extent that these projects are fully funded). The Capital Board (an officer working 
group) oversees the coordination of the Capital Programme, ensuring that projects are 
delivered within their allocation of funding and planned timescales. As at the end of 
Period 7 there is a forecast overspend of £3.1m. Monitoring indicates that capital 
spending in 2016/17 will be £225.9m compared to the latest approved budget of 
£222.8m. 

30.The following table sets out the forecast of spend by Directorate.  Additional detail is 
provided at Appendix B. Proposed changes to the capital programme of £1.6m, 
presented to Cabinet on 6th December 2016 are now reflected in the budget 
summarised below. 

Table 6: Capital Programme Forecast Expenditure & Financing

Period 6 
2016/17 
Budget

Capital 
Budget 

Adjustments

Period 7 
2016/17 

Combined 
Budget

2016/17 
Forecast 
Outturn

2016/17 
Forecast 
Outturn 
Variance

2016/17 
Actual 

Spend to 
Date

£m £m £m £m £m £m
People 39.2 1.6 40.8 42.3 1.5 13.2
Place 87.3 87.3 88.4 1.1 30.3
Neighbourhoods 9.8 9.8 9.0 (0.8) 2.8
Resources 18.7 18.7 18.7 0.0 7.7
Housing Revenue Account 56.0 56.0 57.3 1.3 26.3
Corporate 10.2 10.2 10.2 0.0 7.3
Totals 221.2 1.6 222.8 225.9 3.1 87.6

80.2 80.1 (0.1)
67.7 69.3 1.6

5.0 5.3 0.3
13.9 13.9 0.0
56.0 57.3 1.3

222.8 225.9 3.1

Revenue Contributions
Housing Revenue Account (Self-Financing)
TOTAL CAPITAL FINANCING

Finance By:
Prudential Borrowing
Capital Grants
Capital Receipts *

* The amount included against capital receipts will transfer to Prudential Borrowing, as the capital 
receipts will be used to fund transformation activity expenditure within the general revenue fund.

31.The actual capital spend to the end of Period 7 is £87.6m (39% of Combined Budget). 
Whilst historic trends indicate that capital spending increases towards the end of the 
financial year, the level of forecast spend to date (31st October 2016) is low compared 
to the current budget for the financial year.  Projected spend to the year end, based on 
a pro-rata basis, would be £150.2m or 67% of the current budget.

32.As at the end of October 2016, there is a forecast net overspend against the Capital 
Programme of £3.1m, against an overspend of £2.4m at the end of Period 6.  The 
following is a summary of the significant areas where budget pressures have been 

Page 39



26

identified: 

32.1 Housing Revenue Account – £1.3m Pressure

There are projected overspends (£4.3m) in “Investment in Blocks” projects due to 
works showing greater than expected costs and slippage from previous.  These have 
been offset by reducing expenditure and delaying projects in some areas, including on 
low rise cladding and laundries (£4.9m).  Land enabling works also forecasting £2.3m 
overspend due to work delayed in 15/16.  This is offset by savings from recruitment 
freeze and schemes put on hold.

The movement since Period 6 is due to some upward revision of cost estimates, offset 
by reduced spend on low rise cladding work and cavity wall and insulation works.

The overspend in this area will be funded from the Housing Revenue Account. 

32.2 People Directorate Services - £1.5m Pressure 

The main areas of spending pressure are related to the Education Capital Programme 
and also the transformation programme in Care Management.  Managers have been 
closely monitoring the actual and forecast expenditure against the revised budget, with 
further work ongoing to review budget profiles and project spend across the life of the 
projects.

32.3 – Place Directorate Services – £1.1m Pressure

Following the re-phasing of Budget in Period 5 which has seen circa £54m 2016/17 
expenditure re-profiled into future years, there are no significant forecast variances in 
the current financial year.  There is an in-year spending pressure against Major 
Transport Projects, with underspends being reported against the Energy Services 
Programme.  Managers have been closely monitoring the actual and forecast 
expenditure against the revised budget, and it is expected that the outturn position will 
be within 1% variation from budget. However, further works are required for budget re-
profiling under Transport and Energy through the Corporate Capital Programme Board.

It has been acknowledged that the first 7 months actual capital expenditure still falls 
short of the amount pro-rated for this time of the year, however, past performance 
suggests that expenditure is back loaded towards the end of the financial year. Place 
managers are actively reviewing the position of expenditure forecast in Period 8, 
assessing further risks of slippage and adjusting the accuracy of the forecast 
accordingly. 

Corporate ERP Project 

Page 40



27

33.A project to deliver an integrated employee resource application to update the finance 
system and replace HR and Payroll systems, commenced in December 2014. To date 
we have upgraded the finance system, introduced new e-recruitment and performance 
management systems but have been unable to go live with the HR and Payroll system. 
  We have commissioned a review to gain an independent perspective of the issues 
and challenges, the outcome of which will inform a wider transformation programme.  
Whilst this review is underway we continue to have discussions with the external 
supplier and systems integrator.

34.A further upgrade of the finance system has been completed to avoid the risk of it 
becoming unsupported and we have extended the contract for the current HR and 
Payroll systems. This will incur additional expenditure above that which was originally 
forecast.  The estimated cost of this is c£245k for the extension of licences on the 
legacy HR & Payroll system and will require funding through the corporate contingency, 
and is reflected in Table 4. 

Capital Receipts 

35.The assumed level of Capital Receipts to support the general fund element of the 
Capital Programme (excluding HRA) is £5m pa.  The current disposal programme 
estimates general fund receipts of £5.3m for 2016/17, plus risk adjusted deliveries of 
£6.6m for £2017/18 and £8.4m for 2018/19.

36.The following provides a summary of the assets in scope for delivery and the current 
risk assessed receipts in that year:

Table 7: Forecast Capital Receipts

2016/17
£m

2017/18
£m

2018/19
£m

2019/20
£m

2020/21
£m

Total
£m

All In-scope 
Assets Delivery 8.6 9.5 21.1 4.3 2.0 45.4
Base Case 
Forecast 
Delivery 5.3 6.6 8.4 6.5 6.3 33.1

Capital Financing

37.The capital financing assumptions are detailed in Table 6 above.   As part of the overall 
review of the capital programme already referred to, the capital financing assumptions 
and the future revenue implications will be kept under review.  However, with a 
programme of this size, it is unlikely that there will be future underspends on the capital 
financing budget, and therefore the contribution being made towards the 2016/17 
forecast outturn variance should be assumed to be a one-off position. 

38.The current capital financing assumptions include capital receipts of £5.3m.  As 
outlined in paragraph 28 above, officers have reviewed the new flexibilities to use 

Page 41



28

capital receipts to fund transformational activities.  This will mean that these receipts 
will no longer be available in 2016/17 to finance this proportion of the Capital 
Programme.  However, estimated capital receipts in 2017/18 and 2018/19 are higher 
than budgeted and will therefore be available to offset this, subject to future funding 
decisions.  

39. Included in the General Revenue Fund is a capital financing budget of £19.3m, which is 
currently forecasting an underspend of £4.1m, due to previous re-profiling of the capital 
programme.  As part of the capital financing calculation is a Minimum Revenue 
Provision (MRP), which is the minimum amount that the local authority should set aside 
to repay future debt.  The Council’s current MRP policy has been reviewed to assess if 
a more financially efficient policy could be adopted.  A report outlining the outcomes of 
this review, with appropriate recommendations was presented to full council for 
consideration on 13th December 2016.  The forecast costs of capital financing in 
2016/17 have been updated to incorporate this change.

E – Managing Income 

40.Collection rates for both business rates and council tax are broadly on target. However, 
an increase has been noticed in the Council Tax Base and this will be reflected in the 
budget for 2017/18.  A report on the Collection Fund will be presented to Cabinet on 
10th January 2017. However, the position on business rates can be significantly 
affected by successful appeals, as the Council could have to refund several years’ 
backdated payments from a single year’s income.  Officers are closely monitoring 
business rates appeals applications.  The Council has received applications from a 
number of health care trusts for mandatory charitable rates relief. In line with advice 
from the Local Government Association, all claims have been rejected and, to date, no 
counter applications have been made.  The trusts are continuing to pay their business 
rates.  The Council is also aware of an application from a telecommunications company 
to have their telecommunication network transferred from the local rating list to the 
central list, with a potential for a backdated refund. Officers are in contact with the 
Valuation Office but currently very little information is available to the Council as Billing 
Authority.

41.As well as Council Tax and Business Rates, the Council also raises and collects 
sundry income, which includes contributions for social care services.  Table 8 provides 
a summary of the outstanding debt against sundry income, by directorate, with a more 
detailed analysis included as Appendix C.  

42.The council currently has a total of £36.7m (£31.1m at Period 6) outstanding debts. Of 
the £36.7m outstanding debt included in Table 8, the top 20 customer debts, ranging 
from £140k to £9.5m, amounts to £19.5m of the debt or 53% (33% at Period 6) of the 
total outstanding debt.  This is mainly as a result of a number of single large debts 
being raised in this period.

43.At the end of each financial year, the Council is required to calculate a bad debt 
provision based on its level of outstanding debt,  The amount of provision required is 

Page 42



29

dependent on the age of the debt, with all debt over 2 years, being 100% provided for.  
The current bad debt provision (as at 31st March 2016) is £11.8m.  Based on the 
current level of debt in table 8, if no further action is taken, the required bad debt 
provision is estimated to be £15.8m. Single, large debts can have a disproportionate 
impact on the provision required.  However, action will continue to be taken between 
now and the end of the financial year to ensure that the value of outstanding debt is 
reduced.

Table 8 – Outstanding Debt Analysis by Directorate

Directorate Outstanding 
 Value 
£000's

Average 
Value  £

People 23,989 2,381
Resources 432 757
Neighbourhoods 4,003 344
Place 4,396 1,370
City Director 31 7,873
Corporate & Other 3,914 385
TOTALS 36,765 1,031

F - Treasury Management 

44.No borrowing has been undertaken to date during 2016/17. Net debt (borrowing less 
investment) has increased marginally by £4.7m between the 30th September to 31st  
October from £279m to £284m.   

45.The average level of funds available for investment purposes during the first seven 
months of the year was £167m. The return for the period was 0.59% compared to the 
recognised benchmark of 0.26% (7 day Libid average for period).

46.The 2016–2019 Treasury Strategy identified a medium term borrowing requirement of 
£150m to support the existing and future Capital Programme.   The Council’s agreed 
policy is to defer borrowing while it has significant levels of cash balances (£130m at 
October 2016, £70m estimated for March 2017).  The authority is planning on 
borrowing £20m during the year at a preferential rate from the PWLB that expires on 
the 31st March for the Bristol Temple Meads East Regeneration (Arena) scheme with 
the net financing costs contained within the existing capital financing budget.  No 
further borrowing is anticipated in the current financial year unless rates are expected 
to rise significantly from their current position to enable the authority to reduce its 
exposure to interest rate risk.  

47.The Council has complied with all treasury management legislative and regulatory 
requirements during the period and all transactions were in accordance with the 
approved Treasury Management Strategy

G – Bristol City Council Owned Companies

Page 43



30

48.To the end of Period 7 2016/17, no additional loans / investments have been made to 
the Council’s Subsidiaries.  The amount of loans / investments as at the 31st October 
2016 is set out below:
                               Bristol Holding Company - £9.5m
                               Bristol is Open - £350k

Since the 31st October 2016, Bristol Holding Company has received further 
investments of £2.893m bringing the total investments to £12.4m

Overall Risk Assessment

49. In the Budget Report presented to Full Council in February 2016, a number of 
significant risks were identified.  The finance reports this year have identified that a 
significant number of these risks have come to fruition in the early part of the financial 
year, or remain relevant.  The list below highlights the most significant of these risks: 

 the scale of overall reductions to all directorate budgets (£35.4m identified and 
included in the approved budget) and the potential of non-delivery of these 
savings;

 the potential of overspends against budgeted net expenditure;
 Care placements & budgets, both in terms of activity as a result of demographic 

pressures and also unit costs;
 Potential delay in delivery of capital receipts;
 Increase in pension liabilities;
 volatility in business rate income including the level of successful appeals, the 

result of the application for mandatory charitable relief made by a number of 
hospital trusts and the transfer of properties between rating lists.  Once these 
changes are made the Council may have to refund several years back dated 
rates from a single years income.

As well as the risks highlighted above, the following additional risks have been identified:

 wholly owned company delivery of agreed business plans;
 Sustainability of Council owned and managed assets, including infrastructure 

previously identified, property, fleet and ICT.
 Schools PFI contracts;
 Living Wage Accreditation – this will require a full review of all external contracts 

and may result in additional contractual costs;
 inflationary pressure on contract and energy costs;
 increased capital costs of major projects, i.e. Metrobus, the delivery of the Arena 

and  Bristol Temple Meads Easts (development area around the arena);
 Current lack of policy clarity on proposed changes to business rate retention;
 The effect of Brexit both on house building industry and general economic 

confidence;
 There will be other costs, such as the Mayoral Combined Authority, still to be 

fully quantified;

Any risk assessment requires constant review and will form part of the ongoing future 
monitoring.

Page 44



31

Consultation and scrutiny input:

a. Internal consultation:
Strategic Directors, Service Directors and the finance team.

b. External consultation:
Not applicable

Other options considered:
No other options are considered at the present time.

Public sector equality duties:
There are no proposals in this report which require either a statement as to the relevance 
of public sector equality duties or an Equalities Impact Assessment.

Environmental checklist / eco impact assessment
Not applicable.

Resource and legal implications:

Finance

a. Financial (revenue) implications – Service Director - Finance:
As set out in the Report, the Council is currently forecasting an overspend based on 
service spending from April to October and service projections for the remainder of the 
year, offset by savings in other corporate budgets.  Failure to take action to contain 
spending within budget and to manage and monitor expenditure and income could 
result in a requirement to draw on reserves. The level of reserves is limited and a one 
off resource that cannot be used as a long term sustainable strategy for financial 
stability. Budget monitoring and management, of which this report forms part of the 
control environment, is a mitigating process to ensure early identification of pressures 
and action plans.

Budget risks and pressures have been identified, as outlined above, and are currently 
being managed and closely monitored.  Due to the severity of the forecast outturn 
variance (potential deficit of £17.5m), the Interim Chief Executive, supported by the 
Service Director: Finance (s.151 Officer), have put in train a number of actions as 
outlined in paragraph 13.  This report provides an update against these and includes 
actions that can and have been taken (subject to approval), which will help to mitigate 
the current forecast outturn deficit, as summarised in Table 1.

Finance staff resources have been targeted to ensure that support for budget 
monitoring is concentrated on areas of particularly high risk. 

b. Financial (capital) implications:
Set out within the report.

c. Legal implications:

Page 45



32

No significant legal issues are raised by the report.  The recommendations are in 
accordance with the Council’s constitution and financial regulations.

Advice given by Shahzia Daya: Service Director Legal Services
Date: 1st November 2016

d. Land / property implications:

Relevant property implications have been included within the body of the report.

Advice given by Robert Orrett – Service Director Property
Date: 5th October 2016

e. Human resources implications:

In line with the financial position and the mitigating actions set out in this paper (paragraph 
13) a Section 188 notice was issued in August 2016. The s188 notice provided formal 
notification to Trade Unions that the scale of the potential workforce reduction is estimated 
to be up to 975 employees by 31 March 2017.  

As previously reported, an initial voluntary severance opportunity was implemented 
through to the end of September 2016.  Following responses to applications that have 
approved severance for 303 employees to date, further actions to close the budget gap 
are now being implemented.   This includes the actions taken to further extend the 
Council’s spending freeze on non-essential spending, including the recruitment of agency 
and permanent staff.  While further review of service designs are likely to result in 
redundancies we are seeking to avoid compulsory redundancies wherever possible.

Full consultation with Trade Unions is being undertaken throughout the period of 
organisation change and restructure and we will seek to reach agreement with the 
recognised Trade Unions on how to mitigate the need to make any further compulsory 
redundancies.

If, after meaningful consultation and after mitigating actions have taken place, compulsory 
redundancies are unavoidable, employees will be given notice of dismissal in accordance 
with the Council’s agreed policies.

Advice given by Richard Billingham – Service Director HR, Change & Communications
Date: 2nd December 2016

Page 46



BRISTOL CITY COUNCIL REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING STATEMENT - PERIOD 7

Forecast P6

Outturn Outturn

Expenditure Income Net Budget Net Budget YTD Spend Expenditure Income Net Forecast Variance Variance

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

DIRECTORATE: PEOPLE

Strategic Commissioning 24,448 (4,454) 19,994 11,788 14,419 24,871 (5,897) 18,974 (1,020) (436)

Care & Support - Adults 157,839 (40,402) 117,437 68,515 77,384 168,004 (45,190) 122,814 5,377 5,252

Care & Support – Children & Families 46,627 (2,811) 43,816 25,586 28,039 51,924 (4,599) 47,325 3,509 3,402

Education & Skills 24,920 (17,500) 7,420 4,339 (2,212) 25,471 (17,515) 7,956 536 867

Dedicated Schools Grant 175,349 (175,255) 94 55 (14,817) 180,360 (180,265) 95 1 0

Management - People 3,867 (3,893) (26) (15) 941 3,796 (3,128) 668 694 165

Early Intervention & Targeted Support 29,680 (11,346) 18,334 10,699 9,852 31,594 (9,135) 22,459 4,125 4,098

PEOPLE DIRECTORATE TOTAL 462,730 (255,661) 207,069 120,967 113,606 486,020 (265,729) 220,291 13,222 13,348

DIRECTORATE: RESOURCES

ICT 12,806 (4,080) 8,726 11,695 (529) 16,819 (4,210) 12,609 3,883 3,852

Legal Services 11,481 (4,974) 6,507 3,826 6,170 12,655 (6,211) 6,444 (63) (30)

Finance 6,274 (2,086) 4,188 4,145 (279) 6,253 (2,074) 4,179 (9) (38)

Human Resources (HR) 9,495 (3,390) 6,105 3,674 4,485 9,371 (3,841) 5,530 (575) (581)

BUSINESS CHANGE TOTAL 40,056 (14,530) 25,526 23,340 9,847 45,098 (16,336) 28,762 3,236 3,203

DIRECTORATE: NEIGHBOURHOODS

Citizen Services 222,052 (209,769) 12,283 7,180 7,102 221,244 (208,422) 12,822 539 243

Waste 46,900 (19,467) 27,433 16,029 18,554 37,320 (10,605) 26,715 (718) (985)

Housing Delivery - General Fund 23,241 (10,279) 12,962 7,699 9,682 25,761 (12,557) 13,204 242 (324)

Neighbourhoods and Communities 25,548 (11,661) 13,887 8,235 9,068 25,580 (11,987) 13,593 (294) 40

Public Health - General Fund 6,825 (4,411) 2,414 1,436 739 6,757 (4,492) 2,265 (149) 15

Management - Neighbourhoods 141 (40) 101 59 66 141 (40) 101 0 3

NEIGHBOURHOODS TOTAL 324,707 (255,627) 69,080 40,638 45,211 316,803 (248,103) 68,700 (380) (1,008)

DIRECTORATE: PLACE

Property 28,953 (36,440) (7,487) (4,276) 4,275 28,379 (26,862) 1,517 9,004 9,128

Planning 5,805 (5,418) 387 238 (1,075) 6,065 (5,937) 128 (259) (289)

Transport 60,729 (46,024) 14,705 7,019 (4,212) 65,454 (51,900) 13,554 (1,151) (1,463)

Economy 12,253 (6,812) 5,441 3,190 5,410 14,347 (8,861) 5,486 45 120

Economy - ABS Team 2,284 (465) 1,819 1,129 1,278 2,096 (465) 1,631 (188) (285)

Energy 11,335 (8,414) 2,921 1,712 986 12,482 (10,669) 1,813 (1,108) 111

PLACE TOTAL 121,359 (103,573) 17,786 9,012 6,662 128,823 (104,694) 24,129 6,343 7,322

DIRECTORATE: CITY DIRECTOR

Policy, Strategy & Communications 4,693 (1,510) 3,183 2,603 (597) 4,573 (1,423) 3,150 (33) (391)

Bristol Futures 3,888 (2,379) 1,509 1,544 (1,255) 3,273 (1,967) 1,306 (203) (148)

Management - City Director 2,159 0 2,159 1,262 (22) 2,437 (24) 2,413 254 138

CITY DIRECTOR TOTAL 10,740 (3,889) 6,851 5,409 (1,874) 10,283 (3,414) 6,869 18 (401)

CORPORATE SAVINGS PROGRAMME TOTAL (801) (8,377) (9,178) 5,033 (53) 9,974 (8,628) 1,346 10,524 15,753

SERVICE NET EXPENDITURE 958,791 (641,657) 317,134 204,399 173,399 997,001 (646,904) 350,097 32,963 38,217

OTHER CORPORATE BUDGETS 39,819 (11,265) 28,554 29,674 (13,888) 15,786 (12,768) (8,344)

RELEASED FROM RESERVES 0 (2,400) (2,400) (2,400) (2,400)

TOTAL REVENUE NET EXPENDITURE 998,610 (652,922) 345,688 204,399 173,399 1,026,675 (660,792) 363,483 17,795 27,473

BRISTOL CITY COUNCIL HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT SUMMARY

Forecast P6

Outturn Outturn

Expenditure Income Net Budget Net Budget YTD Spend Expenditure Income Net Forecast Variance Variance

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

Strategy, Planning & Governance 24,681 (131,293) (106,612) (62,337) (78,262) 23,800 (131,261) (107,461) (849) (650)

Responsive Repairs 47,424 (17,384) 30,040 17,554 17,229 48,026 (17,438) 30,588 548 476

Planned Programmes 18,015 (1,312) 16,703 9,778 6,577 15,802 (1,321) 14,481 (2,222) (2,065)

Estate Management 16,242 (2,055) 14,187 8,298 5,814 16,044 (2,050) 13,994 (193) (227)

HRA Financing & Funding 44,667 1,026 45,693 0 0 44,667 1,026 45,693 0 0

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT TOTAL 151,029 (151,018) 11 (26,707) (48,642) 148,339 (151,044) (2,705) (2,716) (2,466)

BRISTOL CITY COUNCIL RING FENCED PUBLIC HEALTH

Forecast P6

Outturn Outturn

Expenditure Income Net Budget Net Budget YTD Spend Expenditure Income Net Forecast Variance Variance

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Public Health - Grant 35,025 (34,995) 30 (1,073) (1,914) 36,710 (36,681) 29 0 0

35,025 (34,995) 30 (1,073) (1,914) 36,710 (36,681) 29 0 0

2016/17 BUDGET YEAR TO DATE FORECAST OUTTURN

2016/17 BUDGET YEAR TO DATE FORECAST OUTTURN

2016/17 BUDGET YEAR TO DATE FORECAST OUTTURN

Page 47



Cabinet Finance Report Period 7 - End of October APPENDIX B

2016/17 Capital Proposed Budget, Forecast and Variance Analysis  

Directorate

PERIOD 6      

2016/17    

BUDGET 

TOTAL              

£000's

2016/17          

BUDGET 

ADJUSTME

NTS     

£000's

PERIOD 7      

2016/17    

BUDGET 

TOTAL              

£000's

2016/17      

FORECAST 

TOTAL              

£000's

2016/17       

VARIANCE     

TOTAL                             

£000's                                 

2017/18   

BUDGET 

TOTAL              

£000's

2018/19   

BUDGET 

TOTAL              

£000's

2019/20   

BUDGET 

TOTAL              

£000's

People
Education Capital Programme 2

Major Projects Programme 2 18,416 2,529 20,945 21,817 872 7,495 0 0

Site Acquisitions 132 0 132 131 (1) 0 0 0

Commissioning 0 0 0 0 0 20 0 0

Early Years 54 0 54 0 (54) 0 0 0

Primary 0 0 0 0 0 11 0 0

Universal Free School Meals 7 0 7 7 0 0 0 0

Schools Access Initiative SAI/DDA 119 0 119 120 1 132 0 0

Lifecycle (R&M) 39 0 39 39 0 0 0 0

Urgent/Emergency 80 30 110 110 0 82 0 0

Completed Projects 7 40 47 42 (5) 0 0 0

Total - Education Capital Programme 2 18,854 2,599 21,453 22,266 813 7,740 0 0

Schools' Devolved Capital

Capital, Assets & Access 1 4,528 0 4,528 4,528 0 2,005 0 0

Total - Schools' Devolved Capital 4,528 0 4,528 4,528 0 2,005 0 0

CYPS non-Schools

CYPS non-Schools 1,508 56 1,564 1,564 0 100 50 0

Total - CYPS non-Schools 1,508 0 1,564 1,564 0 100 50 0

Education Capital Programme 3

Major Projects 10,980 460 11,440 11,440 0 16,056 6,381 0

Site Acquisitions 1,500 (1,500) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Commissioning 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,420

Feasibility 100 0 100 100 0 1,098 0 0

Lifecycle (Capital R&M) 485 0 485 485 0 520 695 0

Total - Education Capital Programme 3 13,065 (1,040) 12,025 12,025 0 17,674 8,496 0

Children & Families

0-25 Integrated Service 190 0 190 190 0 430 0 0

Fostering and Adoption 129 0 129 120 (9) 0 0 0

Youth & Play 204 0 204 204 0 0 0 0

Total - Children & Families 523 0 523 514 (9) 430 0 0

Care Management

Transformation - Capital (346) 0 (346) 218 564 0 0 0
Total - Care Management (346) 0 (346) 218 564 0 0 0

Care Services

Operations - Capital 209 0 209 378 169 0 0 0
Total - Care Services 209 0 209 378 169 0 0 0

Strategic Housing

Extra Care Housing 819 0 819 803 (16) 3,075 0 0
Total - Strategic Housing 819 0 819 803 (16) 3,075 0 0

Totals - Directorate: People 39,160 1,559 40,775 42,296 1,521 31,024 8,546 0

Place
Strategic Property

Building Practice Capital 2,646 0 2,646 3,618 972 1,715 0 0

Corporate Property 433 0 433 100 (333) 0 0 0

Museums 121 0 121 0 (121) 0 0 0

Docks 22 0 22 0 (22) 0 0 0
Total - Strategic Property 3,222 0 3,222 3,718 496 1,715 0 0

Major Projects

Place, Major Schemes 7,922 0 7,922 7,838 (84) 51,209 50,000 6,000

Filwood Broadway 184 0 184 0 (184) 1,012 169 0

Hengrove Park 27 0 27 15 (12) 0 0 0

Kingswear and Torpoint Flats 715 0 715 413 (302) 7 0 0

Filwood Green Business Park 1,494 0 1,494 1,494 0 0 0 0

Economy Development 818 0 818 875 57 0 0 0

Strategy & Commissioning 775 (55) 720 720 0 3,461 2,500 0

Total - Major Projects 11,935 (55) 11,880 11,355 (525) 55,689 52,669 6,000

Planning & Sustainable Development

City Design Group 368 23 391 425 34 786 500 0
Total - Planning & Sustainable Development 368 23 391 425 34 786 500 0

Transport

Page 48



Sustainable Transport 9,971 25 9,996 9,921 (75) 12,088 3,000 1,940

Strategic City Transport 7,249 0 7,249 6,944 (305) 11,197 0 0

Highway Drainage Capital Works 2,771 0 2,771 2,771 0 0 0 0

Highways & Traffic 6,431 0 6,431 6,718 287 149 0 0

Parking Services 82 0 82 61 (21) 0 0 0

Passenger Transport 1,855 (250) 1,605 1,895 290 1,292 0 0

Residents Parking Zone 1,200 0 1,200 1,200 0 978 0 0

Transport Major Projects (Metrobus) 30,873 250 31,123 33,185 2,062 15,310 0 0

Total - Transport 60,432 25 60,457 62,695 2,238 41,014 3,000 1,940

Energy Services

Energy Management Unit 3,686 0 3,686 2,943 (743) 7,759 0 0

Warm Up Bristol 5,769 0 5,769 6,531 762 0 0 0

Energy Services 1,923 0 1,923 743 (1,180) 0 0 0

Total - Energy Services 11,378 0 11,378 10,217 (1,161) 7,759 0 0

Totals - Directorate: Place 87,335 (7) 87,328 88,410 1,082 106,963 56,169 7,940

Neighbourhoods
Bristol Operations Centre

Bristol Operations Centre 5,509 0 5,509 5,451 (58) 2,447 0 0

Total - Bristol Operations Centre 5,509 0 5,509 5,451 (58) 2,447 0 0

Environment & Leisure

Cemeteries & Crematoria 108 0 108 108 0 0 0 0

Parks 1,603 0 1,603 1,054 (549) 958 300 0

Waste Services 36 0 36 36 0 0 0 0
Total - Environment & Leisure 1,747 0 1,747 1,198 (549) 958 300 0

Neighbourhoods & Communities

Libraries 641 0 641 458 (183) 822 0 0
Total - Neighbourhoods & Communities 641 0 641 458 (183) 822 0 0

Housing Services - Capital

Private Housing & Adaptations 1,892 0 1,892 1,892 0 700 0 0

Total - Housing Services Capital 1,892 0 1,892 1,892 0 700 0 0

Totals - Directorate: Neighbourhoods 9,789 0 9,789 8,999 (790) 4,927 300 0

Resources
Bristol Futures

City Innovation 6,980 0 6,980 6,940 (40) 8,823 0 0

Total - Bristol Futures 6,980 0 6,980 6,940 (40) 8,823 0 0

Information & Communication Technology

ICT Refresh Programme 0 0 0 0 0 1,500 1,500 1,500

BWP - Buildings 6,021 1 6,022 5,756 (266) 0 0 0
Total - Information & Communication Technology 6,021 1 6,022 5,756 (266) 1,500 1,500 1,500

Bristol Workplace Programme - Design

BWP - Design Contract 5,800 0 5,800 5,897 97 2,235 0 0

Total - Bristol Workplace Programme - Design 5,800 0 5,800 5,897 97 2,235 0 0

Bristol Workplace Programme - Buildings

BWP - Technology (121) 0 (121) 67 188 0 0 0
Total - Bristol Workplace Programme - Buildings (121) 0 (121) 67 188 0 0 0

Totals - Directorate: Resources 18,680 1 18,681 18,660 (21) 12,558 1,500 1,500

Housing Revenue Account
Planned Programme 40,330 0 40,330 39,794 (536) 40,000 40,000 40,000

Responsive Repairs 700 0 700 700 0 500 500 500

Strategy, Planning & Governance 14,989 0 14,989 16,786 1,797 9,500 9,500 9,500
Total - Housing Revenue Account 56,019 0 56,019 57,280 1,261 50,000 50,000 50,000

Totals - Housing Revenue Account 56,019 0 56,019 57,280 1,261 50,000 50,000 50,000

Corporate 
Capital Funding

Capital Funding 10,254 0 10,254 10,254 0 11,670 1,600 1,500

Total - Capital Funding 10,254 0 10,254 10,254 0 11,670 1,600 1,500

Totals - Directorate: Corporate 10,254 0 10,254 10,254 0 11,670 1,600 1,500

TOTALS -  CAPITAL PROGRAMME 221,237 1,553 222,846 225,899 3,053 217,142 118,115 60,940

Future years budget TOTALS  396,197

Capital Programme Tier 1 budget (all years) TOTALS  619,043

Page 49



APPENDIX C

ANALYSIS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT - PERIOD 7

Directorate Not Due Number 1-29 Days Number 30-59 Days Number 60-89 Days Number 90-119 Days Number 120-365 Days Number 1-2 Years Number 2 - 4.5 Years Number Over 4.5 Year Number Outstanding Amount Number Average Value

People 0.00 0 9,866,714.97 1,973 978,565.63 765 4,159,608.98 583 771,865.67 495 4,376,640.08 2,888 2,459,859.04 1,179 1,071,128.20 1,709 304,585.48 483 ########### 10,075 2,381.04

Business Change 0.00 0 59,395.07 172 31,124.56 36 95,442.20 35 3,567.74 8 94,451.99 88 87,504.67 87 50,091.58 135 10,078.65 9 431,656.46 570 757.29

Neighbourhoods 0.00 0 622,246.34 2,502 668,155.47 2,231 107,411.92 481 112,007.76 305 1,147,475.43 2,416 385,701.76 1,038 645,669.70 1,904 314,065.36 765 4,002,733.74 11,642 343.82

Place 0.00 0 786,539.05 642 245,946.51 435 611,867.92 229 255,137.86 104 1,174,619.06 812 626,939.43 328 403,982.19 479 291,241.50 181 4,396,273.52 3,210 1,369.56

City Director 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 1,159.17 2 30,331.65 2 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 31,490.82 4 7,872.71

Corporate & Other 0.00 0 149.26 7 182.77 1 25,051.41 2 7,089.11 10 44,728.21 15 10,207.80 7 13,709.77 14 0.00 0 101,118.33 56 1,805.68

Cost centres o/s of rev reporting -2,966.52 4 165,101.74 265 -33,840.48 111 89,247.76 118 -22,310.92 73 -51,872.22 425 767,636.28 1,869 1,896,945.08 5,576 1,004,483.50 1,665 3,812,424.22 10,106 377.24

Corporate & Other -2,966.52 4.00 165,251.00 272.00 -33,657.71 112.00 114,299.17 120.00 -15,221.81 83.00 -7,144.01 440.00 777,844.08 1,876.00 1,910,654.85 5,590.00 1,004,483.50 1,665.00 3,913,542.55 10,162 385.12

TOTALS -2,966.52 4 11,500,146.43 5,561 1,890,134.46 3,579 5,088,630.19 1,448 1,128,516.39 997 6,816,374.20 6,646 4,337,848.98 4,508 4,081,526.52 9,817 1,924,454.49 3,103 ########### 35,663 1,030.89

P
age 50


	Agenda
	8 Collection Fund - Estimated Council Tax and Business Rates Surplus 2016/17
	8b Collection Fund – Estimated Council Tax and Business Rates Surplus 201617 report

	9 Period 7 (end of October) Finance Report
	9b Period 7 Finance Report Appendix A - Period 7 (051216)
	9c Period 7 Finance Report Appendix B - Period 7 (051216)
	9d Period 7 Finance Report  Appendix C - Period 7 (051216)


